
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 
 
 
 

Tuesday, 11th 
December, 2012 
7.00 pm 
 
Committee Room Two 
Town Hall 
Redditch 

Public Document Pack



 
 

Access to Information - Your Rights 
 

The Local Government 
(Access to Information) Act 
1985 widened the rights of 
press and public to attend 
Local Authority meetings 
and to see certain 
documents.  Recently the 
Freedom of Information Act 
2000, has further broadened 
these rights, and limited 
exemptions under the 1985 
Act. 

Your main rights are set out 
below:- 

• Automatic right to attend 
all Council and 
Committee meetings 
unless the business 
would disclose 
confidential or “exempt” 
information. 

• Automatic right to inspect 
agenda and public reports 
at least five days before 
the date of the meeting. 

• Automatic right to inspect 
minutes of the Council 
and its Committees (or 
summaries of business  

 

undertaken in private) for 
up to six years following a 
meeting. 

• Automatic right to inspect 
lists of background 
papers used in the 
preparation of public 
reports. 

• Access, upon request, to 
the background papers 
on which reports are 
based for a period of up 
to four years from the 
date of the meeting. 

• Access to a public 
register stating the names 
and addresses and 
electoral areas of all 
Councillors with details of 
the membership of all 
Committees etc. 

• A reasonable number of 
copies of agenda and 
reports relating to items to 
be considered in public 
must be made available 
to the public attending 
meetings of the Council 
and its Committees etc. 

• Access to a list specifying 
those powers which the 
Council has delegated to its 
Officers indicating also the 
titles of the Officers 
concerned. 

• Access to a summary of the 
rights of the public to attend 
meetings of the Council and 
its Committees etc. and to 
inspect and copy 
documents. 

• In addition, the public now 
has a right to be present 
when the Council 
determines “Key Decisions” 
unless the business would 
disclose confidential or 
“exempt” information. 

• Unless otherwise stated, all 
items of business before the 
Executive Committee are 
Key Decisions.  

• (Copies of Agenda Lists are 
published in advance of the 
meetings on the Council’s 
Website: 
www.redditchbc.gov.uk 

 
If you have any queries on this Agenda or any of the decisions taken or wish to 

exercise any of the above rights of access to information, please contact 
Jess Bayley and Michael Craggs 

Democratic Services Officers 
 

Town Hall, Walter Stranz Square, Redditch, B98 8AH 
Tel: 01527 64252 (Ext. 3268 / 3267) Fax: (01527) 65216 
e.mail: jess.bayley@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk / 

michael.craggs@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Welcome to today’s meeting. 

Guidance for the Public 
 
 
Agenda Papers 

The Agenda List at the front 
of the Agenda summarises 
the issues to be discussed 
and is followed by the 
Officers’ full supporting 
Reports. 
 
Chair 

The Chair is responsible for 
the proper conduct of the 
meeting. Generally to one 
side of the Chair is the 
Committee Support Officer 
who gives advice on the 
proper conduct of the 
meeting and ensures that 
the debate and the 
decisions are properly 
recorded.  On the Chair’s 
other side are the relevant 
Council Officers.  The 
Councillors (“Members”) of 
the Committee occupy the 
remaining seats around the 
table. 
 
Running Order 

Items will normally be taken 
in the order printed but, in 
particular circumstances, the 
Chair may agree to vary the 
order. 
 
Refreshments : tea, coffee 
and water are normally 
available at meetings - 
please serve yourself. 
 

 
Decisions 

Decisions at the meeting will 
be taken by the Councillors 
who are the democratically 
elected representatives. 
They are advised by 
Officers who are paid 
professionals and do not 
have a vote. 
 
Members of the Public 

Members of the public may, 
by prior arrangement, speak 
at meetings of the Council or 
its Committees.  Specific 
procedures exist for Appeals 
Hearings or for meetings 
involving Licence or 
Planning Applications.  For 
further information on this 
point, please speak to the 
Committee Support Officer. 
 
Special Arrangements 

If you have any particular 
needs, please contact the 
Committee Support Officer. 
 
Infra-red devices for the 
hearing impaired are 
available on request at the 
meeting. Other facilities may 
require prior arrangement. 
 
Further Information 

If you require any further 
information, please contact 
the Committee Support 
Officer (see foot of page 
opposite). 

Fire/ Emergency  
instructions 
 
If the alarm is sounded, 
please leave the building 
by the nearest available 
exit – these are clearly 
indicated within all the 
Committee Rooms. 
 
If you discover a fire, 
inform a member of staff 
or operate the nearest 
alarm call point (wall 
mounted red rectangular 
box).  In the event of the 
fire alarm sounding, leave 
the building immediately 
following the fire exit 
signs.  Officers have been 
appointed with 
responsibility to ensure 
that all visitors are 
escorted from the 
building. 
 
Do Not stop to collect 
personal belongings. 
 
Do Not use lifts. 
 
Do Not re-enter the 
building until told to do 
so.  
 
The emergency 
Assembly Area is on 
Walter Stranz Square. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 



 
 

 
 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

 

 

Tuesday, 11th December, 2012 

7.00 pm 

Committee Room 2 Town Hall 

 

Agenda Membership: 

 Cllrs: Juliet Brunner 
(Chair) 
Simon Chalk (Vice-
Chair) 
Andrew Brazier 
David Bush 
John Fisher 
 

Andrew Fry 
Pattie Hill 
Gay Hopkins 
Pat Witherspoon 
 

1. Apologies and named 
substitutes  

To receive apologies for absence and details of any 
Councillor (or co-optee substitute) nominated to attend this 
meeting in place of a member of this Committee. 
  

2. Declarations of interest 
and of Party Whip  

To invite Councillors to declare any interest they may have in 
items on the Agenda and any Party Whip. 
  

3. Minutes  

(Pages 1 - 24)  

To confirm the minutes of the most recent meeting of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee as a correct record. 
 

(Minutes attached) 
 
(No Specific Ward Relevance);  

4. Quarterly Budget 
Monitoring Report - 
Quarter 2 - July - 
September 2012  

(Pages 25 - 32)  

T Kristunas, Head of 
Resources 

To receive and consider the quarterly budget report for the 
second quarter of 2012/13. 
 
 
 
(Report attached). 
 
(No Specific Ward Relevance);  

5. Concessionary Rents - 
Pre-Scrutiny Short, Sharp 
Review  

(Pages 33 - 42)  

A Heighway, Head of 
Community Services, T 
Kristunas, Head of Finance 
and Resources and 
Councillors Andrew Brazier 
and Juliet Brunner 

To consider the final report from the Concessionary Rent 
Pre-Scrutiny Short, Sharp Review Group and to determine 
whether to endorse the group’s recommendations. 
 
 
 
 
 
(Pre- Scrutiny report attached, Officers’ report to follow). 
 
(No Specific Ward Relevance);  



 
 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee  

 

 

Tuesday, 11th December, 2012 
 

6. Overview and Scrutiny - 
Six Month Review of the 
Committee Function  

(Pages 43 - 50)  

C Felton, Head of Legal, 
Equalities and Democratic 
Services 

To consider a review of the Overview and Scrutiny function 
at the Council and to determine what actions, if any, could be 
taken to improve the process. 
 
 
 
(Report attached). 
 
(No Specific Ward Relevance);  

7. Portfolio Holder Annual 
Report - Written Report - 
Leisure and Tourism  

(Pages 51 - 64)  

J Godwin, Head of Leisure 
and Cultural Services 

To receive and consider a report outlining the performance of 
services within the remit of the Portfolio Holder for Leisure 
and Tourism. 
 
 
(Report attached). 
 
(No Specific Ward Relevance);  

8. Actions List  

(Pages 65 - 66)  

To note the contents of the Overview and Scrutiny Actions 
List. 

 

 

  
(Report attached) 
 
(No Specific Ward Relevance);  

9. Executive Committee 
Minutes and Scrutiny of 
the Executive Work 
Programme  

(Pages 67 - 80)  

To consider the minutes of the latest meeting(s) of the 
Executive Committee and also to consider whether any items 
on the Executive Work Programme are suitable for scrutiny. 

 
 
(Minutes attached). 
 
(No Specific Ward Relevance);  

10. Task & Finish Reviews - 
Draft Scoping 
Documents  

To consider any scoping documents provided for possible 
Overview and Scrutiny review. 

 

 

(No reports attached) 

 
(No Specific Ward Relevance);  



 
 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee  

 

 

Tuesday, 11th December, 2012 
 

11. Task and Finish Groups - 
Progress Reports  

Councillor Andrew Brazier, 
Councillor Juliet Brunner, 
Councillor Gay Hopkins 

To consider progress to date on the current reviews against 
the terms set by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 
The current reviews in progress are: 

 
a) Arts and Culture Centre – Chair, Councillor Gay 

Hopkins; 
 
b) Concessionary Rents – Councillors Andrew Brazier 

and Juliet Brunner; and 
 
c) Redditch Market – Chair, Councillor Andrew Brazier. 

 
 (Oral reports) 
 
(No Specific Ward Relevance);  

12. Health Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee  

Councillor Pat Witherspoon 

To receive a verbal update on the recent work of the 
Worcestershire Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 
(Verbal report) 
 
(No Specific Ward Relevance);  

13. Referrals  To consider any referrals to the Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee direct, or arising from: 

• The Executive Committee or full Council 

• Other sources. 
 

(No separate report). 

 
(No Specific Ward Relevance);  

14. Work Programme  

(Pages 81 - 86)  

To consider the Committee’s current Work Programme, and 
potential items for addition to the list arising from: 

• The Forward Plan / Committee agendas 

• External publications 

• Other sources. 

(Report attached) 

 
(No Specific Ward Relevance);  



 
 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee  

 

 

Tuesday, 11th December, 2012 
 

15. Exclusion of the Press 
and Public  

Should it be necessary, in the opinion of the Borough 
Director, during the course of the meeting to consider 
excluding the public from the meeting on the grounds that 
exempt information is likely to be divulged, it may be 
necessary to move the following resolution: 

“That, under S.100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the 
following matter(s) on the grounds that it/they involve(s) the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the 
relevant paragraphs (to be specified) of Part 1 of Schedule 
12 (A) of the said Act”. 
 
These paragraphs are as follows: 

Subject to the “public interest” test, information relating to: 

•         Para 1 – any individual; 

•         Para 2 – the identity of any individual; 

•         Para 3 – financial or business affairs; 

•         Para 4 – labour relations matters; 

•         Para 5 – legal professional privilege; 

•         Para 6 –  a notice, order or direction; 

•         Para 7 – the prevention, investigation or  

                     prosecution of crime; 

                     and may need to be considered as ‘exempt’.  

 
 
(No Specific Ward Relevance);  

  

 
 



 
 

 

Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

  

 

Tuesday, 6th November, 2012 

 

 

 Chair 
 

 

 

MINUTES Present: 
  

Councillor Simon Chalk (Vice Chair in the Chair), and Councillors 
David Bush, John Fisher, Andrew Fry, Roger Hill Gay Hopkins, 
Yvonne Smith and Pat Witherspoon.  
 

 Also Present: 
 

 Councillor Debbie Taylor 
 
Ms T Buckley and Mr R Colebrook (Co-opted Members, Unison). 
 

 Officers: 
 

 T Beech, H  Broughton, C Felton, D Poole, G Revans, I Roberts, J 
Staniland, M Stanley and J  Willis 
 

 Democratic Services Officers: 
 

 J Bayley and M Craggs 
 
 

91. APOLOGIES AND NAMED SUBSTITUTES  
 
Apologies were received on behalf of Councillors Brunner, Brazier 
and P Hill.  
 
Councillors R Hill and Smith were confirmed as substituting for 
Councillors Brunner and P Hill respectively. 
 

92. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND OF PARTY WHIP  
 
There were no declarations of interest nor of any party whip. 
 

93. MINUTES  
 
The Committee considered the minutes of the previous meeting, 
held on Tuesday 9th October 2012.   
 
Concerns were expressed by some Members that minute 78 did not 
reflect the full detail of the responses that had been provided during 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 

 
 

Tuesday, 6th November, 2012 

 
the annual report for the Portfolio Holder for Planning, 
Regeneration, Economic Development and Transport, in response 
to a number of subsidiary questions that had been proposed by 
Members.  It was suggested that additional information should be 
added for this item, particularly on the subject of the Eastern 
Gateway, and more detailed minutes should be produced for future 
meetings. 
 
However, other Members commented that a detailed account had 
been provided in the minutes, both through the attachment of a 
written version of the answers provided by the Portfolio Holder as 
an appendix, and in the rest of the minutes.    Concerns were also 
expressed that if additional detail was added the minutes would 
become too lengthy. 
 
It was noted that Officers did not produce a verbatim record of 
proceedings but rather summarised points raised during a meeting.  
The minutes reflected the hand written record taken by Officers 
during the meeting, and it was suggested that this record should be 
reviewed to identify whether any additional content could be added 
to the minutes. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
subject to the content of minute 78 being reviewed, the 
minutes of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held on 9th October 2012 be approved as a correct 
record of the meeting and signed by the Chair. 
 

94. PROPOSED REVISED ARRANGEMENTS FOR PERFORMANCE 
REPORTING  
 
The Committee received a presentation on the future of 
performance reporting at Redditch Borough Council.  
 
Members were advised that performance monitoring arrangements 
had been reviewed as part of the ongoing transformation process.  
The performance framework would differ in many respects from the 
previous quarterly reporting system.  The focus would no longer be 
on meeting performance targets.  Instead, the aim would be to use 
the data provided in the reports to improve the performance of 
services. 
 
The Council was currently in a transitional period for the 
transformation of services.  A number of teams had been involved 
in the transformation process for some time, though other teams 
had only recently started to become involved in transformation.  

Page 2



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 

 
 

Tuesday, 6th November, 2012 

 
Through transformation residents were consulted directly, their 
demands were identified and services were then adapted to meet 
their needs accordingly. 
 
The needs of residents identified through consultation had formed 
the basis of the Council’s key strategic purposes.  Nine strategic 
purposes had been identified and would be used to measure the 
performance of Council services.  These measures would not 
remain static.  Instead, the strategic purposes would continue to be 
reviewed as the transformation process progressed to ensure that 
Council services could adapt to meet changing needs and 
circumstances. 
 
The performance monitoring reports would be presented in a new 
format using graphs and charts, which would enable Members and 
Officers to interpret performance data.  In the long-term the 
performance reports would be made available for all Members and 
staff to view on the Council’s intranet. 
 
The Council’s process for managing complaints about service 
performance was discussed by the Committee.  Officers advised 
that many of the complaints received by the Council related to 
practices that had not been in place prior to transformation and it 
was anticipated that transformation would help to resolve some of 
the problems identified by customers.  However, the Council took all 
complaints seriously and liaised with residents in order to try to 
resolve the issues that caused the complaints.   
 
Concerns were expressed that some residents might be reluctant to 
make complaints about service performance.  In particular, 
Members commented that some residents might feel anxious about 
the potential impact that a complaint about a service might have on 
the quality of the services they received from the Council in future.  
Further information was therefore requested about how the Council 
reassured residents in these circumstances.  
 
The Committee was informed that the new reporting framework was 
not due to be introduced until spring 2013.  Prior to this date 
Officers would be delivering member development sessions 
focusing on the new reporting framework. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the report be noted. 
 
 

Page 3



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 

 
 

Tuesday, 6th November, 2012 

 
95. PORTFOLIO HOLDER ANNUAL REPORT - ENVIRONMENT AND 

HEALTH - COUNCILLOR DEBBIE TAYLOR  
 
Further to consideration of the Portfolio Holder for Environment and 
Health’s written report at the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on 9th October 2012 Councillor Taylor provided a 
response to Members’ questions as detailed in Appendix 1.  
Additional information was provided in relation to the following 
subjects: 
 
a) Allotments 
 

The Committee was advised that there was 98 per cent 
occupancy of the Council’s allotments.  The exact number of 
allotments available within the town, the number of vacant 
allotments and the distribution of allotments across the 
Borough could not be confirmed at the date of the meeting.  
However, Members discussed the potential value of 
introducing more allotments within the Borough.  Some 
Members suggested that more allotments could be provided to 
meet increasing demand.  On Other Members expressed 
concerns that the high occupancy rates reflected the need for 
residents to grow their own food in difficult economic 
circumstances and there was a risk that these levels would not 
necessarily be sustained once the economy recovered. 

 
b) Footpaths 
 

There were a number of footpaths in the town.  Whilst some of 
the footpaths were the responsibility of Redditch Borough 
Council other footpaths were the responsibility of 
Worcestershire County Council.  The Council’s GIS system 
was used to maintain an accurate record of the footpaths that 
were the property of Redditch Borough Council. 

 
c) Renewable Energy 
 

Members were advised that there had been an under spend of 
approximately £90,000 on the budget that had been allocated 
to the installation of solar panels.  The remaining budget would 
need to be allocated to renewable energy projects involving 
the Council’s Housing stock as the funds had been derived 
from the Council’s Housing Revenue Account (HRA).  There 
were a number of options that could be explored for the use of 
this budget including the installation of biomass boilers in 
some properties, though a variety of options were currently in 
the process of being reviewed. 

Page 4



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 

 
 

Tuesday, 6th November, 2012 

 
 
d) Landscaping 
 

There was the potential for transformation to contribute to 
improvements to the landscaping services provided by the 
Council.  As part of this process the timescales that the 
Council had traditionally followed when maintaining hedgerows 
and cutting grass on Council land would be reviewed to ensure 
that the works were completed in a timely fashion that 
minimised disruption to residents and businesses. 

 
e) Trees 
 

Each year a number of trees were felled for a variety of 
reasons. The Council’s policy was to replace the trees that 
were felled.  Increasingly, Officers were ensuring that the trees 
planted in a particular location were suitable for the 
environment in which they would grow.   
 
The potential for Ash Dieback Tree Fungal Disease to impact 
on trees situated in the Borough was discussed in detail.  By 
the date of the meeting no confirmed cases of the disease had 
been identified in trees located in the Borough.  However, the 
Council was aware of the potential risks, particularly due to the 
large number of trees and woodland areas in the Borough.   
 
There was the potential that lessons could be learned from the 
way that local authorities had responded to outbreaks of Dutch 
Elm Disease.  There was also the possibility that a number of 
trees would develop resistance to the disease.  To ensure that 
the Council responded appropriately to any outbreaks Officers 
were continuing to monitor the situation. 

 
RESOLVED that 
 
the report be noted. 
 

96. REDDITCH SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY  
 
The Committee was advised that the report contained the six month 
review of the progress that had been made in meeting the key 
priorities for the Borough outlined in the Redditch Sustainable 
Community Strategy. 
 
The strategy had been developed by the Redditch Partnership, the 
Local Strategic Partnership (LSP) in the Borough. The core work of 
the partnership was co-ordinated by a central partnership board, 

Page 5



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 

 
 

Tuesday, 6th November, 2012 

 
comprising representatives from the public sector, private sector, 
voluntary and community sector.  The LSP was not a statutory 
body.  However, the local authority had a legal requirement to 
produce a Sustainable Community Strategy, which reflected the 
needs and priorities of the local community.   
 
There were four key priorities in the strategy: health inequalities; 
education attainment; employment; and areas of deprivation.  Sub-
Groups had been established to address two of these priorities: the 
Health and Well Being Group and the Education Sub-Group.  Action 
Plans had been provided for three of the priority areas for Members’ 
consideration. 
 
The Redditch and Bromsgrove Commissioning Group had awarded 
Redditch and Bromsgrove approximately £250,000 for health 
projects in both areas.  The Health and Well Being Action Plan 
provided further information about these projects and the 
expenditure required.  Officers were anticipating that additional 
funding would be secured in 2013/14, though the amount of funding 
that would be provided remained to be confirmed.   
 
The Education Action Plan was designed to focus on early 
intervention.  However, Worcestershire County Council was in the 
process of restructuring their early intervention and children’s centre 
teams, a process which would not be completed until April 2013.  At 
that stage the Education Action Plan would be reviewed and 
updated. 
 
An Action Plan had also been produced for the “Winning Winyates” 
Area of Highest Needs Project.  The project was designed to 
address the needs of residents living and working in Winyates, one 
of the areas of deprivation in the Borough.  A variety of actions had 
been taken or were in the process of being delivered as part of this 
project including: the installation of a secure access system for the 
flats in Winyates district centre; healthy eating initiatives; and a 
traders group project. 
 
Members commented that a limited number of the projects were 
targeted at elderly residents.  This had occurred because 
traditionally Redditch had had a youthful population.  However, the 
census in 2011 had demonstrated that the number of older 
residents had increased.  This demographic data would be 
considered as part of any future reviews of the Sustainable 
Community Strategy. 
 
 
 

Page 6



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 

 
 

Tuesday, 6th November, 2012 

 
RESOLVED that 
 
the report be noted. 
 

97. INCREASING RATES OF RECYCLING - MONITORING REPORT 
UPDATE  
 
A monitoring update report on the implementation of 
recommendations that had been made by the Increasing Rates of 
Recycling Review Group in March 2012 was presented for the 
Committee’s consideration.  Additional information was provided in 
relation to the following matters: 
 
a) Grey bins 
 

The Council’s priority was to promote recycling and reuse of 
resources to residents.  Extra grey bins were only provided to 
residents as a last resort.  Media campaigns were increasingly 
being used to raise awareness of the benefits of recycling in 
order to discourage requests for grey bins. 

 
b) Transformation 
 

A Transformation Project Team had been established in 
Environmental Services.  Two service operatives were 
involved in the project and they were helping the team to 
identify improvements that could be made in the delivery of 
collection services.  The team had already concluded that 
improvements could be made to the way bins were returned to 
residents on collection days. 

 
c) 100 per cent Project 
 

Progress had been made in extending recycling services to 
properties that had not previously been in receipt of the 
service.  However, a number of areas, such as Winyates 
district centre, were not yet in receipt of the service.  Officers 
were working to address the barriers, which varied between 
areas, to extending recycling services across the Borough. 

 
d) Envirosort Visit 
 

New Members were invited to participate in a visit to the 
Envirosort facility in Norton.  The scrutiny group had visited the 
centre as part of their review and this visit had contributed to 
their understanding of the subject. 

 

Page 7



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 

 
 

Tuesday, 6th November, 2012 

 
 
e) Member Training 
 

The Environmental Services Team were in the process of 
producing a route optimisation plan.  Officers were aiming to 
deliver Member Briefings on the subject of this plan in 2013.  
During the briefing information would also be provided about 
the numbers of grey and green bins in the Borough. 

 
f) Recycling Rates 
 

Some concerns were expressed about the extent to which 
recycling rates had increased over the previous six months.  
However, Members were advised that whilst there had only 
been a relatively small increase in recycling rates in that period 
it was anticipated that the levels of recycling would improve 
further over the following 12 months.  In particular, specific 
parts of the Borough where low recycling rates had been 
identified were being targeted through active media 
campaigns. 
 

RESOLVED that 
 
the report be noted. 
 

98. CONCESSIONARY RENTS PRE-SCRUTINY SHORT, SHARP 
REVIEW  
 
The Committee agreed that, due to the absence of the two 
Members who had undertaken the review, the item should be 
deferred for consideration at the following meeting of the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee on 11th December 2012. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the item be deferred for consideration at the following meeting 
of the Committee on 11th December 2012. 
 

99. SICKNESS POLICY PRE-SCRUTINY SHORT, SHARP REVIEW  
 
The Committee received the final report of the Sickness Policy Pre-
Scrutiny Short, Sharp Review Group, which was presented by the 
members of the group; Councillors Fisher and Witherspoon. 
 
The Committee was advised that the group had not been permitted 
to access the new Sickness Absence Policy proposed by Officers 
during their review.  The Councillors had been prevented from 

Page 8



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 

 
 

Tuesday, 6th November, 2012 

 
scrutinising the report because, in accordance with the Council’s 
constitution, Overview and Scrutiny Members were not entitled to 
access reports in a draft form.  Members were advised that the 
report from Officers was not due to be finalised until Monday 12th 
November. 
 
During the course of the review the group had, however, received 
evidence from a wide range of sources.  An overview had been 
provided about the changes that Officers were proposing to the 
Council’s Sickness Absence Policy.  The content of the Council’s 
existing Sickness Absence Policy had also been considered 
alongside policies adopted by other local authorities.  A number of 
expert witnesses had been interviewed during the review including: 
representatives of the Council’s Finance department; 
representatives of Human Resources; the Portfolio Holder for 
Corporate Management, Councillor Mould; and union 
representatives from UCATT and Unison. 
 
The Committee’s co-opted members, from the union Unison, 
welcomed the review and noted that the group’s recommendations 
reflected a common sense approach to managing staff absences 
due to sickness.  Members were advised that Redditch Borough 
Council had a good track record in managing sickness absences.  
However, the review was considered to be timely, following the 
introduction of service transformation and shared services.  In 
particular, it was suggested that the review would help managers to 
support staff absent due to stress related illnesses. 
 
During the course of the group’s interviews with union 
representatives the subject of a staff survey had been discussed.  
Members had recognised the potential value of the survey.  
However, the group had concluded that further work needed to be 
undertaken to review the potential uses of a survey. 
 
The content of the proposed A5 laminated guide to the Sickness 
Absence Policy was discussed in detail.  The group explained that 
the aim of this recommendation would be to ensure that employees 
were provided with simple guidance notes that could be referred to 
in the event of unexpected sickness.  A simple guide was 
considered to be of more practical assistance to staff in these 
circumstances than reference to a lengthier policy document.  To 
reassure staff that the guide was intended to be a practical tool it 
was suggested that consideration should be given as to the most 
appropriate method to use to communicate the introduction of the 
guide to staff. 
 
 

Page 9



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 

 
 

Tuesday, 6th November, 2012 

 
RECOMMENDED that 
 
1) the Council’s Sickness Absence Policy should be updated 

and reduced in length, in order to clarify the structure and 
process for managing both short-term and long-term 
sickness absences;   

 
2) the terminology used in the policy be sensitive to the 

needs of staff experiencing sickness;   
 
3) an A5 laminated guide to the Council’s Sickness Absence 

Policy should be provided for the use of managers and 
staff;   

 
4) all changes to the Council’s Sickness Absence Policy 

should be communicated to managers and staff;   
 
5) the Sickness Absence Policy should be included in the 

induction process for new staff and managers employed 
by the Council;   

 
a) staff and managers should also receive regular 

refresher training;   
 
6) the Sickness Absence Policy should be applied 

consistently to staff across all service areas, but 
managers should be encouraged, recognising individual 
circumstances and different working environments to 
apply the policy appropriately;   

 
7) the occupational health service available to staff 

experiencing sickness should be reviewed;   
 
8) communication should form an integral part of the 

transformation process to ensure that staff understand 
the reasons for changes made to services as part of the 
transformation process and how transformation may 
impact on them; and 

 
RESOLVED that 
 
the report be noted. 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 

 
 

Tuesday, 6th November, 2012 

 
100. PORTFOLIO HOLDER ANNUAL REPORT - WRITTEN REPORT - 

COMMUNITY SAFETY & REGULATORY SERVICES  
 
The Committee received a written report outlining the performance 
of services within the remit of the Portfolio Holder for Community 
Safety and Regulatory Services, Councillor Blake.  Members noted 
that they were due to propose questions for the consideration of the 
Portfolio Holder, and to invite her to address these questions at the 
following meeting of the Committee.   
 
However, Members expressed concerns about retaining the annual 
report on the agenda for the December meeting of the Committee.  
The annual reports had been taking a significant amount of time to 
address during recent meetings of the Committee.  As a 
consequence, Members commented that they were unable to 
dedicate appropriate time to consider other items on the agenda nor 
did the Committee have sufficient time to reflect on the information 
that had already been provided by Portfolio Holders. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
1) the annual report from the Portfolio Holder for Community 

Safety and Regulatory Services be cancelled; and 
 
2) the Portfolio Holder be advised of these arrangements 

accordingly. 
 

101. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - SIX MONTH 
REVIEW OF THE COMMITTEE FUNCTION  
 
The Committee agreed that, due to the absence of the Chair of the 
Committee, the item should be deferred for consideration at the 
following meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 11th 
December 2012. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the item be deferred for consideration at the following meeting 
of the Committee on 11th December 2012. 
 

102. ACTIONS LIST  
 
Members noted that information about the Education Business 
Partnership, requested at a meeting of the Committee in June, had 
now been circulated for Members’ consideration.  In addition, 
following publication of the agenda pack Officers had provided 
further information about the Redditch Development Model. 

Page 11



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 

 
 

Tuesday, 6th November, 2012 

 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the Committee’s Actions List be noted. 
 

103. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MINUTES AND SCRUTINY OF THE 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE'S WORK PROGRAMME  
 
The Committee considered the minutes from the meeting of the 
Executive committee held on 16th October 2012.  Members noted 
that all of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s recommendations 
on the subject of the Dial a Ride Extended Service Feasibility study 
had been approved during that meeting. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
1) the minutes of the Executive Committee meeting held on 

16th October 2012 be noted; and 
 
2) the Executive Committee’s Work Programme be noted. 
 

104. TASK & FINISH REVIEWS - DRAFT SCOPING DOCUMENTS  
 
There were no draft scoping documents. 
 

105. TASK AND FINISH GROUPS - PROGRESS REPORTS  
 
The Committee received the following reports in relation to current 
reviews: 
 
a) Arts and Culture Centre – Chair, Councillor Gay Hopkins 
 

Councillor Hopkins reported that the review was progressing 
rapidly.  Members had visited arts centres in other parts of the 
country and had interviewed a number of expert witnesses.  At 
forthcoming meetings Members were due to learn more about 
the sources of funding available to support the arts and current 
arts provision within the Borough. 

 
b) Redditch Market – Chair, Councillor Andrew Brazier 
 

Members were advised that the group had recently interviewed 
the new manager of the Kingfisher Shopping Centre about the 
potential for joint working.  The group had also consulted with 
local market traders and customers in order to obtain further 
information about how the market could be improved. 
 

Page 12



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 

 
 

Tuesday, 6th November, 2012 

 
The group were due to undertake a significant amount of 
consultation work in December and January.  To ensure that 
the information provided during this consultation could help to 
inform the group’s final recommendations the group were 
requesting that the deadline for the review be extended by a 
month. 

 
RESOLVED that 
 
1) the deadline for completion of the Redditch Market review 

be extended to Tuesday 5th February 2013; and 
 
2) the update reports be noted. 
  

106. HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 
Councillor Witherspoon advised Members that the latest meeting of 
the Worcestershire Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
(HOSC) had taken place on Tuesday 6th November 2012.   
 
Representatives of the Joint Services Review (JSR) had attended 
the meeting to discuss latest progress with the review.  Three 
preferred models had been identified and further information would 
be provided about each option in December.  Further public 
consultation on the subject was subsequently due to take place in 
January – March 2013.  Financial sustainability of future service 
delivery had also been discussed.  Members of HOSC had been 
advised that savings of £15 million would need to be made over the 
following two years.   
 
During the HOSC meeting it had been reported that some of the 
highest performing GPs in the country worked in Worcestershire.  In 
addition, figures recorded for Worcestershire demonstrated some of 
the lowest admission rates to hospitals in the country.   
 
Members expressed concerns that the Alexandra Hospital had 
recently been penalised for admitting too many patients.  This had 
not been discussed at the latest meeting of HOSC.  However, 
members of HOSC had previously been reassured about the 
outcomes of this issue. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the report be noted. 
 
 
 

Page 13



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 

 
 

Tuesday, 6th November, 2012 

 
107. REFERRALS  

 
There were no referrals. 
 

108. WORK PROGRAMME  
 
The Committee’s Work Programme was considered and the 
following subjects were raised for further discussion: 
 
a) Overview and Scrutiny Budget Briefing 

 
Members were advised that a special briefing on the subject of 
the Council’s budget in 2013-14 would be delivered on 
Thursday 29th November 2012. 

 
b) Call-in Briefing 
 

The Committee noted that a briefing for all Members would 
take place at 6.30 immediately prior to the following meeting of 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 11th December 
2012. 

 
c) CfPS Parliamentary Seminar Series 
 

Officers reported that the latest round of Centre for Public 
Scrutiny (CfPS) Parliamentary Seminar Series would be taking 
place on 12th December 2012, 6th February and 6th March 
2013 in London.  Participation in this training would cost £40 
per member and attendance would be subject to the approval 
of group leaders. 

 
d) West Midlands Regional Scrutiny Network 
 

The Committee noted that the following meeting of the West 
Midlands Regional Scrutiny Network was due to take place 
during the day on Thursday 6th December 2012 at 
Birmingham Council House.  Members were invited to advise 
Officers in advance if they were intending to attend the 
meeting. 

 
RESOLVED that 
 
the Committee’s Work Programme be noted. 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 

 
 

Tuesday, 6th November, 2012 

 
The Meeting commenced at 7.00 pm 
and closed at 9.10 pm 

Page 15



Page 16



  
 

Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee 

No Direct Ward Relevance 

6th November 2012 
 

Y:\ Overview and Scrutiny Committee\2012\121106/Portfolio Holder Environment and Health Qs.doc 

 

APPENDIX 1 
 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER ANNUAL REPORTS: QUESTIONS AND SUBJECTS FOR 
DISCUSSION WITH COUNCILLOR DEBBIE TAYLOR, PORTFOLIO HOLDER 
FOR LOCAL ENVIRONMENT AND HEALTH 
 
The following questions have been suggested by Members of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee.  These questions will be posed to Councillor Debbie Taylor, 
Portfolio Holder for Local Environment and Health at the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee meeting on Tuesday 6th November 2012.  
 
1) Please could you outline what you consider to be: 
 

a) The successes within the remit of your Portfolio? 
 
The following areas have been successes: 
 
i) Joint procurement of two new refuse vehicles with Bromsgrove District Council. 
ii) Achieving gold in the 2012 Britain in Bloom competition.  Staff worked hard to deliver a 

successful display despite the poor weather conditions. 
iii) Green flag awards for the parks in Redditch. 
iv) Progress had been made in relation to addressing climate change. 
v) Allotment occupancy rates have increased.  Allotments provide people with an 

affordable source of food at a time when food is expensive. 
 
b) Areas of concern within the remit of your Portfolio? 

 
Funding cuts 
 
As all Members will be aware over the last two years Redditch BC has seen a reduction in its 
Central Govt grant funding. So far these cuts have been absorbed and the public have seen 
no reduction in the services that directly impact on them e.g. Waste, Landscape, Street 
Cleansing, Parks, etc. However, the economic situation nationally is still not good and it is 
very likely that the government will impose further cuts to council funding and therefore 
authority will have to make further cuts.  
 
Whilst we anticipate that the transformation process will help us deal with the known 
reductions in funding to maintain services by looking at more efficient and effective methods 
of service delivery, the unknown nature regarding size and scale of any other cuts that may 
be required are a real worry with regard to how they might impact on service delivery. 
 
Green Deal 
 
Will the Green Deal deliver what is needed with regard to improving energy efficiency and 
contribute to reductions in climate change impacts? 
 

Page 17



   
 

Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee 

  

 

6th November 2012 
 

g:\overview & scrutiny committee\2007\committee meetings\071107portfolio annual reports071107.doc 

 

The Government has launched the Green Deal. However, information is coming out slowly 
from government regarding the details, which means that we still have a limited 
understanding of how this will impact on the Council, partners and our residents. 
 
How this will actually work in terms of how the Council and its partners will be involved in 
delivery, funding, etc. is being worked up in partnership with the County Council and other 
district Councils.  The key unknown and risk is what the take up will be from residents for 
what effectively will be a loan to improve the energy efficiency of homes (that will be attached 
to a property rather than an individual) and paid back via the fuel bill, is a major unknown.  
 
The Hospital remains an area of concern with the possible downgrading of the Alexandra 
Hospital.  The campaign has been good at raising awareness.  The options remain to be 
announced.  Once they have been announced a response will be provided. 

 
(Within your answer please could you refer to the impact of recent budget cuts on resurfacing 
of footpaths in the Borough). 

 
Answer: 

 
a) The majority of footpaths in Redditch are maintained by Worcestershire County 

Council. 
 

b) There are no immediate areas of concern relating to the footpaths in MSP, as 
Officers have focussed on the main two areas and resolved the issues that lead to 
the budget bid being submitted.  Officers will continue to monitor the situation and 
should any future issues present themselves, this will be addressed through the 
normal Council procedures/policies.   

 
 
2) Why has there been an under spend on the budget for the Solar PV project?  

What will the surplus funds remaining be spent on?  
 

Answer: 
 

Although we are still negotiating the final invoices, subject to the successful completion of the 
final installation in October 2012, there will be an underspend of the total £275,000 HRA 
budget allocated for installation of solar PV panels on sheltered housing sites of around 
£90,000.  The reason for the underspend was that a number of prospective housing sites 
were simply unsuitable for the installation of PV panels, for example having north facing 
roofs, or being heavily shaded by oak trees, e.g. at the Evesham Road site.  A full report on 
the outcomes of the PV panels including which sites were included will come through to the 
Climate Change Advisory Panel in due course and monitoring of payback times and 
performance will also be included on the agenda on a regular basis.  
 
Officers advise that the surplus funds would ideally be used on other renewable systems, 
although a full investigation into this has yet to begin.  Mainly the hold up is due to a delay in 
the Government’s announcement of the new Renewable Heat Incentive (similar to the feed in 
tariff scheme for electricity, but for heating).  Once this is announced, we will be able to work 

Page 18



   
 

Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee 

  

 

6th November 2012 
 

g:\overview & scrutiny committee\2007\committee meetings\071107portfolio annual reports071107.doc 

 

out whether or not there is a sensible business case to invest in renewable heating on our 
housing sites e.g. to supplement the costs of install a biomass boiler at one of the larger 
sheltered housing sites when it’s communal gas boiler is due for replacement.  

 
 
3) The written report for your portfolio stated that “progress has been made on the 

transfer of assets under Section 106 agreement at Brockhill.  The initial transfer of two 
areas that contain the majority of POS and drainage features will lead to the 
‘unlocking’ of other transfer funds”. How long will it take to transfer these assets?  

 
Answer: 

 
Last week the Council completed the transfer of Area 1 (the main area of open space at 
Brockhill)) from Persimmon.  This means we can now liaise with the County Council as the 
Highway authority and Severn Trent Water to get the associated roads and sewers adopted 
by them. 
 
We will then concentrate on the remaining but smaller areas of open space on the 
development to resolve outstanding issues which include drainage problems and 
encroachment by local residents, so that those areas can be adopted.  Some roads and 
sewers will remain unadopted until this is achieved. 
 
We appreciate that residents and Members believe that progress has been slow, but 
unfortunately, for a variety of reasons this has proved to be a complex process which takes 
time to resolve. 

 
4) What progress has been made on transformation of the services within your remit and 

what impact are you anticipating transformation will have on those services?  
 

Answer: 
 
Originally, a cross section of officers and operatives from the waste collection crews at both 
Council’s were brought together to form a team to look at transformation.  The intention for 
the transformation team was to focus on the Waste Management side of Environmental 
Services.  It was planned that the route optimisation project would be included in the 
transformation programme in order to rationalise and improve the efficiency of the waste 
collection rounds in both Redditch and Bromsgrove.  However, very quickly it became clear to 
the team that the waste services being provided by the department were only a small part of 
many intrinsically linked jobs and services that impact on the community.  This lead to the 
realisation that the scope of the transformation team needed to be expanded to include Street 
Cleansing and Landscape/Grounds Maintenance in order to look at and understand the 
‘bigger picture’.  The team now intends to transform all Environmental Services together – 
with Street Cleansing and Grounds Maintenance joining the team in the near future. 

 
The team has also adopted broader ‘strategic’ purposes rather than developing the 
operational purposes identified at the beginning of scoping.  In doing so the team now have a 
much wider outlook on the services provided and the environments they manage.  More 
importantly it has provided them with a broader outlook as to how they could interact with 

Page 19



   
 

Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee 

  

 

6th November 2012 
 

g:\overview & scrutiny committee\2007\committee meetings\071107portfolio annual reports071107.doc 

 

other services provided by the authorities and partners.  To this end officers from Leisure 
Services, Housing and from the County Council and other partner organisations will be either 
asked to join the transformation team or be pulled in when their input is required. 

 
The team have been looking at the types, frequencies and sources of demand; gathering and 
cleansing data to reflect true demand, identifying current service standards, identifying 
system conditions and good and bad practices.  They have also been looking at reactive 
demand, value and failure demand, identifying proactive work types and synergies within 
services. 

 
Route optimisation has been identified as the first priority and therefore the transformation 
team is being split to allow delivery of this key project that will realise efficiencies in the 
collection of waste across the Borough the other part of the team will concentrate the wider 
transformation of Environmental Services, including customer interaction and data capture. 

 
At this stage it is not possible to say exactly how transformation will change the way that 
service are delivered but I would hope that they are more consistent, customer focused and 
efficient 

 
5) How many trees is Redditch Borough Council due to plant in the next twelve months – 

two years? 
 

Answer: 
 

422 ordered by the in-house team; 
420 confirmed to be donated by the Woodland Trust. 

 
6) As Redditch Borough Council’s representative on the Health and Wellbeing Board how 

do you report back to Council? 
 

Answer: 
 

I am a member of the Redditch Health and Well Being Group, which is a sub-group of the 
Redditch Partnership.  The Chair of this Group, Hilary Sharpe (Public Health), who chairs the 
H&W Group meeting, reports back up to the Partnership Board which Councillors Bill 
Hartnett, Greg Chance and Carole Gandy all sit on so they would know what is happening 
through this mechanism.  The minutes of each Partnership Board meeting are published on 
the RBC webpage (under the Partnership section) so Members can see updates on health 
that way.  Councillor Hartnett as Chair of the Partnership also gives a yearly round up of 
Redditch Partnership activities at full Council so that all Councillors have some awareness of 
the Partnership's activities.  In addition, the Council's Partnership Manager, Helen Broughton, 
attends this Committee every six months to provide an update on partnership activities, 
including the Health and Well Being Action Plan. 

 
 
 
 

Page 20



   
 

Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee 

  

 

6th November 2012 
 

g:\overview & scrutiny committee\2007\committee meetings\071107portfolio annual reports071107.doc 

 

7) Which organisations have been identified to deliver healthy eating and cookery 
sessions? 

 
Answer: 

 
Cooking skills, cooking facilities and the ability and confidence to prepare healthier foods are 
all barriers to healthy eating, particularly for those on low incomes.  Through Clinical 
Commissioning Group funding a healthy Cookery project is being established.  A programme 
of healthy eating and cooking training sessions are planned to train up local organisations 
across the Borough to deliver these sessions locally.  This will include the Redditch 
Children's Centres, the Health Trainers, the Winning Winyates Project and voluntary 
organisations. 

 
8) LED lighting was introduced at the Palace Theatre relatively recently.  What plans, if 

any, are there to extend the provision of LED lighting to other Council properties in 
order to reduce the Council’s carbon footprint? 

 
Answer: 

 
As it happens, the Council is about to install further LED lighting within the auditorium of the 
Palace Theatre, as the bulbs are now much more affordable and also have dimming 
versions, which were not available when the bar and corridor areas of the Palace were 
upgraded.  The payback of the auditorium light bulbs is less than 2 years.  
 
There is scope to undertake further works, for example in balcony and stairwell lights at some 
of our housing sites  However, a full piece of work needs to be undertaken on the existing 
projects to identify which forms of lighting upgrades are the most efficient/profitable to 
evidence further investments.  All of the ‘low hanging fruit’ options have already been 
completed and paybacks are due to finish in September 2014.  At this point, the revolving 
spend to save fund will be able to pay for further works without affecting existing budgets. 

 
 
 

Page 21



   
 

Overview & Scrutiny     
Committee 

  

 

6th November 2012 
 

Y:\ Overview and Scrutiny Committee\2012\121106/Portfolio Holder Environment and Health Qs.doc 
 

 

NB Note draft revision /Update – Page 2. S 
 

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
GUIDE TO / FOR PORTFOLIO HOLDERS 

 
 

Portfolio Holders are appointed annually by the Council (separate sheet refers) and between them 
cover all areas of the Council’s work and responsibility. 
 
“Portfolio” indicates a specified area of responsibility allotted by formal resolution, for the purposes 
listed below. 
 
“Portfolio Holder” indicates a member of the Council’s Executive Committee who, within the 
allotted area of responsibility, …..: 
 
CAN 1. Monitor Council performance 

informed by documents such as: 

• Community Strategy 

• Corporate Plan 

• Service Plans 

• Budgets 

• E.Government statements 

• BVPI’s / Local PI’s (separate document available) 

• Forward Plan                  

* 

 2. Monitor the implementation of Council policy and 
decisions 

informed, in addition to the above, by  

• Council reports and Minutes 

• Personal contact with Officers 

* 

 3. Act as consultee 

for Members and Officers 

• Formally, in accordance with approved 
delegations of authority to Officers 

• Informally for general reference. 

* 

 4. 
 

Act as “Spokesperson”  

for the Council in relation to Press / Media / outside the 
Council, but not exclusively (other Members may also 
have this shared role)  

 

Page 22



   
 

Overview & Scrutiny     
Committee 

  

 

6th November 2012 
 

Y:\ Overview and Scrutiny Committee\2012\121106/Portfolio Holder Environment and Health Qs.doc 
 

 

(Council decision – 11th October ??) 
 5. Act as “Rapporteur” 

a)  to report annually to Overview & Scrutiny on the 
Services for which the Portfolio Holder has responsibility; 
and 

b)  to act as a channel for feedback from representatives 
of outside bodies which fall within the remit of the 
Portfolio Holder. 

(Council Annual Meeting 22nd May 2006) 

 

 6. the role of Portfolio Holders be expanded to include a 
higher level of involvement with the Local Strategic 
Partnership, and, more specifically, with relevant 
Sub-Groups of the Redditch Partnership, as and 
when formed. 

(Exec January 2007 / Council …) 

 

    
CANNOT  Act with delegated authority in any personal capacity 

(PFHs cannot therefore commit resources – financial / 
staffing, without further authority – Exec., Council, or 
Officer authority) 

 

   * 
MAY 1. Represent and “sponsor” their allotted Portfolio(s) at 

meetings of the Executive and the Council, and, where 
appropriate, at other Council meetings, e.g. O&S.  

 

 2. Develop closer working relationship with relevant lead 
Directors and, via Directors, other relevant Officers. 

 

 3. Attend relevant meetings, e.g. relevant O&S meetings, 
beyond those to which formally appointed by the Council 

• As an approved duty where invited to the meeting 

• Also as an approved duty when present on own 
initiative. 

in accordance with current approved constitutional 
requirements. 

 

 4. Seek to trigger reports to 

• the Executive or Council, via normal report / 
agenda preparation processes 

• Regulatory Committees, via normal report / 

 

Page 23



   
 

Overview & Scrutiny     
Committee 

  

 

6th November 2012 
 

Y:\ Overview and Scrutiny Committee\2012\121106/Portfolio Holder Environment and Health Qs.doc 
 

 

agenda preparation processes 

• Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 
in accordance with current approved constitutional 

requirements. 
    
  

 
  

 
G:M&C/Members/Portfolio Holder Guide 

& Constitution / Const.documents/revised sms/8.7.6/16.7.7 
 
 
 

Page 24



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  11th December 2012 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\2\6\AI00008628\APRILSEPTEMBERQUARTER2FINANCEMONITORINGRE
PORT201213ReportFinal0.doc30.10.12sc. amended 09.11.2012.nab amended 12.11.12 ds / amended 121123 JB 

APRIL - SEPTEMBER (QUARTER 2) - FINANCE MONITORING REPORT 
2012/13 
 
Relevant Portfolio Holder Councillor Phil Mould, Portfolio Holder 

for Corporate Management. 
Portfolio Holder Consulted   
Relevant Head of Service Teresa Kristunas, Head of Finance 

and Resources 
Wards Affected All Wards  
Ward Councillor Consulted  
Non Key Decision 

 
1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 

This report details the Council’s financial position for the period April to 
September 2012 (Quarter 2 - 2012/13). 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is asked to RESOLVE that 
 

 the current financial position on Revenue and Capital be noted, as 
detailed in the report. 

 
3. KEY ISSUES 
 
3.1 This report provides details of the financial information across the 

Council.  The aim is to ensure Officers and Members can make 
informed and considered judgement of the overall position of the 
Council. 

 
 Financial Implications 
 
3.2 The Council set a balanced budget in February 2012 for the financial 

year 2012/13.  Within the budget were included savings of £654K 
which were not fully identified.  These included savings relating to 
Shared Services, Transformation, and general vacancies within the 
Council. 

 

Agenda Item 4Page 25



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  11th December 2012 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\2\6\AI00008628\APRILSEPTEMBERQUARTER2FINANCEMONITORINGRE
PORT201213ReportFinal0.doc30.10.12sc. amended 09.11.2012.nab amended 12.11.12 ds / amended 121123 JB 

Revenue Budget summary Quarter 2 (April – September) 2012/13 – 
Overall Council 

 
3.3 The current financial position for services delivered within the Borough 

is detailed in the table below. 
 

3.4 Internal recharges have not been included in these figures to allow 
comparison for each service area. 

 

Service Head 
Budget 
2012/13 
£’000 

Budget April 
- September 

£’000 

Actual 
spend April 

- 
September 

£’000 

Variance to 
date 

April - 
September 

£’000 

Projected 
Outturn 

£’000 

Projected 
Variance 
Full Year 

£’000 

Environmental 
Services 3,642 1,994 1,999 5 3,637 -5 

Community 
Services 2,182 1,042 1,037 -5 2,169 -13 

Regulatory 
Services 573 293 284 -9 563 -10 

Leisure & 
Cultural 
Services 

3,915 1,986 2,012 26 3,944 29 

Planning & 
Regeneration 1,694 756 782 26 

 
1,778 

 
84 

Customer 
Services 793 393 358 -35 727 -66 

Finance & 
Resources 5,418 2,951 3,042 91 5,508 90 

Legal, 
Equalities & 
Democratic 
Services 

1,153 602 606 4 1,114 -39 

Business 
Transformation 1,086 597 597 0 1,086 - 

Head of 
Housing 
Services 

924 462 451 -11 913 -11 

Corporate 
Services 1,190 772 781 9 1,179 -11 

SERVICE 
TOTAL  22,570 11,848 11,949 101 22,618 48 

 

Page 26



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  11th December 2012 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\2\6\AI00008628\APRILSEPTEMBERQUARTER2FINANCEMONITORINGRE
PORT201213ReportFinal0.doc30.10.12sc. amended 09.11.2012.nab amended 12.11.12 ds / amended 121123 JB 

Financial Commentary 
 

3.5 Environmental Services 
 

a) There is an assumption that S106 income will be received during 
the year for maintenance of adopted land, and cleansing.  If this 
money is not received there would be an unavoidable pressure up 
to the value of 112k. 
 

b) On street parking enforcement income is projecting a shortfall of 
35k. 
 

c) Bereavement Services income has projected a shortfall of 14k due 
to the closure while capital works were being completed. 
 

d) Savings have been made within waste management of 30k. 
 
3.6 Leisure & Cultural Services 

 
a) The Learn Direct service is projecting a shortfall of income due to a 

change in the funding stream and a lower than expected number of 
users.  The shortfall is expected to be £20K. 
 

b) Salary costs are higher than expected for 4th Tier Managers due to 
additional responsibilities following the shared service.  This is 
estimated at £23K. 
 

c) The Community Centres have not made the savings expected of 
£20K.  As 2 sites were due to be closed, this has not yet been 
achieved and work is ongoing. 
 

d) There is additional income forecasted elsewhere within the Service 
which is projected to partially off-set the overspends identified 
above. 

 
3.7 Legal, Equalities & Democratic Services 
 

The legal underspend is largely due to maternity leave and the fact that 
posts were not filled until part way through the financial year as a result 
of the shared service restructure.  In addition half a post remains 
vacant in the legal team to support the transformational work that has 
been done in housing, revenues and benefits which has revealed 
compelling evidence to support the need for additional debt 
management and income maximisation support to be made available 
to our customers.  The Head of Service has undertaken some work to 
identify costs historically allocated to debt recovery and realigned the 
same in a trial exercise to support the provision of income 

Page 27



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  11th December 2012 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\2\6\AI00008628\APRILSEPTEMBERQUARTER2FINANCEMONITORINGRE
PORT201213ReportFinal0.doc30.10.12sc. amended 09.11.2012.nab amended 12.11.12 ds / amended 121123 JB 

maximisation and debt advice to customers.  Whilst there is an 
underspend currently identified in the area it is likely that this will 
reduce before the end of the financial year as the support for this trial 
continues. 

 
3.8 Planning & Regeneration 

 
a) There is an overspend on Building Control of £28K; this is due to 

redundancy costs following the shared service. 
 

b) There are a number of vacant units at the in the Business Centres, 
resulting in lower than expected rents on this service. This service is 
expected to cost an additional £48K. 
 

c) The salaries for the 4th tier Managers within the service have been 
regarded due to the additional responsibility relating to managing a 
shared service. £9K 

 
3.9 Customer Services 

 
The underspend within the customer services department is due to a 
number of vacancies that exist within the department and spending has 
been reduced to a minimum. 

 
3.10 Finance and Resources 
 

a) Benefit Services have made savings of 28k due to services being 
shared with Bromsgrove District Council, however the variance to 
date and outturn will show an overspend due to increased payments 
in benefits due to the economic downturn. HRA 45K, homelessness 
10k (additional B&B costs), rent allowance 20k. 
 

b) Investment Properties forecast an overspend due to increased 
NNDR on some of the properties and also underachieved rent of 
43k. 

 

Page 28



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  11th December 2012 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\2\6\AI00008628\APRILSEPTEMBERQUARTER2FINANCEMONITORINGRE
PORT201213ReportFinal0.doc30.10.12sc. amended 09.11.2012.nab amended 12.11.12 ds / amended 121123 JB 

3.11 Capital Budget summary Quarter 12 (April - September) 2012/13 – 
Overall Council 

 

Department 

Budget 
2012/13 

 
£’000 

Actual spend 
April – 

September  
 

£’000 

Remaining 
Balance 
2012/13 

 
£’000 

Business 
Transformation 115 31 84 

Environmental 
Services 3,817 2,116 1,701 

Regulatory 
Services 100 0 100 

Community 
Services 952 234 718 

Leisure & 
Cultural 
Services 

150 29 121 

Finance & 
Resources 745 250 495 

Housing 
Services 
(inc HRA) 

8,597 4,913 3,684 

Total 14,476 7,573 6,903 

 
 

Financial Commentary: 

• The Capital expenditure is on track to be spent during this financial 
year. 

• The Budget for Regulatory Services will be spent during the latter half 
of the year. 

• There is an underspend on Community Services due to a lower take 
up of grants available to the public such as DFG’s 

• Financial Services is awaiting invoices from WCC who manage the 
building on our behalf. 

 

Page 29



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  11th December 2012 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\2\6\AI00008628\APRILSEPTEMBERQUARTER2FINANCEMONITORINGRE
PORT201213ReportFinal0.doc30.10.12sc. amended 09.11.2012.nab amended 12.11.12 ds / amended 121123 JB 

Treasury Management 
 
3.12 The Council’s Treasury Management Strategy has been developed in 

accordance with the Prudential Code for Capital Finance prudential 
indicators and is used to manage risks arising from financial 
instruments.  Additionally treasury management practices are followed 
on a day to day basis.  

 
Credit Risk 
 

3.13 Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as 
well as credit exposures to the Council’s customers.  Credit risk is 
minimised by use of a specified list of investment counterparty criteria 
and by limiting the amount invested with each institution. 

 
3.14 At 30th September 2012, short-term investments comprise: 
 

 30th  
September  

2012  
£000 

 
Deposits with Banks/Building Societies 
 

 
4,500 

 
Income from investments 
 

3.15 An investment income target of £79k has been set for 2012/13 using a 
projected rate of return of 0.75% - 1.50%.  During the past financial 
year, bank base rates have remained at 0.50% and current indications 
are projecting minimal upward movement for the short-term. 

 
3.16 In the 6 months to 30th September, the Council earned income from 

investments of £45k.  The Council is on track to achieve the budget on 
investments for 2012. 
 

3.17 The Council’s Treasury Management Strategy has been developed in 
accordance with the Prudential Code for Capital Finance prudential 
indicators and is used to manage risks arising from financial 
instruments.  Additionally treasury management practices are followed 
on a day to day basis.  

 
General Fund Balances 

 
3.18 The General Fund Balance as at the 31st March 2012 is £1,289K; the 

budget set in February 2012, amended on 23rd July 2012 included an 
estimated use of balance of £192K. 

Page 30



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  11th December 2012 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\2\6\AI00008628\APRILSEPTEMBERQUARTER2FINANCEMONITORINGRE
PORT201213ReportFinal0.doc30.10.12sc. amended 09.11.2012.nab amended 12.11.12 ds / amended 121123 JB 

 
3.19 Any overspend on Revenue Budgets would have to be funded from 

Balances, thus affecting future year budgeted use of balances. 
 
 Legal Implications 
 
3.20 No Legal implications have been identified. 
 
 Service/Operational Implications  
 
3.21 Sound performance management and data quality are keys to 

achieving improved scores in the Use of Resources judgement.  This 
performance report supports that aim. 

 
 Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications  
 
3.22 Performance Improvement is a Council Objective. 
 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

Risk considerations are covered within the report. 
 

5. APPENDICES 
 
 None. 
 
6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 None. 
 
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name: Sam Morgan 
E Mail: sam.morgan@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk 
Tel: (01527) 64252 ext 3790 

Page 31



Page 32



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  11th December 2012 

 

 

CONCESSIONARY RENTS – PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY, SHORT, SHARP 
REVIEW – FINAL REPORT 
 

Relevant Portfolio Holder Councillor Phil Mould, Portfolio Holder 
for Corporate Management. 

Portfolio Holder Consulted No, the Portfolio Holder was not 
interviewed by the group. 

Relevant Head of Service Teresa Kristunas, Head of Finance and 
Resources. 

Ward(s) Affected No specific ward relevance. 
Ward Councillor(s) Consulted N/A 
Non-Key Decision  
 
1.  SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 
1.1 This report presents the findings of the Concessionary Rents Pre-Scrutiny 

Short Sharp Review Group. The report should be considered alongside the 
Concessionary Rents Policy produced by Officers for the consideration of 
Members. 
 

1.2 The Group was not permitted to view the content of the Concessionary 
Rents Policy prior to the time of writing, although they did receive an 
overview outlining the proposals that were due to be made by Officers on 
the subject. 

  
2. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
 The Committee is asked to RECOMMEND that: 
 

1) That any Council policy on concessionary rents ensure that a 
consistent, fair and transparent approach is applied to dealing with 
applications from third sector organisations; 

 
2) That any third sector organisation looking to obtain a concessionary 

rent from the Council be required to submit a detailed business case 
outlining their plans for a particular property; 

 
3) That Officers facilitate a series of workshops to advertise and 

promote the new policy to the third sector in Redditch;  
 

Agenda Item 5Page 33



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  11th December 2012 

 

 

4) That the Council work with the local media and utilise social 
networks and its own website to publicise the new policy to the third 
sector in Redditch; 

 
5) That each approved concessionary rent agreement be for a minimum 

five year duration, include a three year break clause, and be 
monitored on an annual basis;  

 
6) That the Council undertake a review of the approved policy twenty-

four months after its inception; 
 

7) That the Council refers all third sector organisations in Redditch 
looking to obtain a concessionary rent for a Council owned 
commercial property to the Ethical Property Foundation for 
independent advice on renting and managing properties; and 

 
8) That the Council provide greater clarity on all concessions available 

to the third sector.  
 

        RESOLVE that 
 
 the report be noted. 

 
3. KEY ISSUES 

 
Background 

 
3.1 The review of Concessionary Rents in Redditch was launched in July 2012. 

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee appointed Councillors Andrew 
Brazier and Juliet Brunner to carry out the review.   

 
3.2 The Committee requested at its meeting on 17th July 2012 that the 

exercise be completed as a short, sharp review for pre-decision and be 
considered alongside the proposed new policy for concessionary rents in 
Redditch. A pre-decision scrutiny exercise involves members of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee looking at an area that is due to be the 
subject of a report to be considered by the decision making Executive 
Committee.  

 
3.3 The review was undertaken to asses the rationale behind the proposed 

introduction of the new Council policy for offering concessionary rents to 
third sector organisations on Council owned commercial properties. This 
would involve consulting with relevant Council Officers who had been 

Page 34



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  11th December 2012 

 

 

tasked with drafting the new policy and with representatives from the third 
sector in Redditch. It would also involve reviewing the effectiveness of 
concessionary rents policies that had been implemented by other local 
authorities.   

  
  RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.4  Further information about each of the Concessionary Rents Short, Sharp 

Review Group’s recommendations is provided below: 
 

Recommendation One: We RECOMMEND that any Council policy on 
concessionary rents ensure that a consistent, fair and transparent 
approach is applied to dealing with applications from third sector 
organisations 

 
3.5 During their investigations, the Group heard that there is currently no policy 

or process in place at the Council for dealing with applications from third 
sector organisations (TSOs) for concessionary rents. Existing applications 
from TSOs for concessionary rents in Redditch are therefore dealt with on 
an ad-hoc basis and assessed entirely on the information submitted by the 
TSO. It was explained to the Group that having a clear written policy for 
offering concessionary rents to TSOs in Redditch would provide much 
needed clarity and transparency on the issue.   

 
3.6 Having consulted Bristol City Council about the introduction of their 

Community Asset Transfer Policy (2010), Members were informed that the 
policy had been successful in ensuring that a consistent approach was 
applied by the Council to dealing with applications for concessionary rents 
from local TSOs. The Group was also informed by a prominent third sector 
representative in Redditch that a clear and transparent policy would likely 
lead to the Council adopting a fairer approach on this issue. 

 
3.7 The Group therefore very much supports the Officers intention that the 

Council’s proposed new policy will provide a consistent, fair, and 
transparent approach to dealing with applications from TSOs for 
concessionary rents. The Group asserts that any new policy built upon 
these principles would tie in very closely with the Council’s values of 
working in partnership with local partners, including the voluntary sector, to 
deliver its priorities; and promote greater fairness through equal treatment 
for all affected in the Borough.  

 
 
 

Page 35



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  11th December 2012 

 

 

Recommendation Two: We RECOMMEND that any third sector 
organisations looking to obtain a concessionary rent from the Council 
be required to submit a detailed business case outlining their plans 
for a particular property 

 
3.8 Through their consultation with Bristol City Council, the Group heard that 

the Council requires all TSOs to submit a well-prepared business case 
outlining their detailed plans for renting a particular property. All business 
cases need to explain in writing how the TSO intends manage and develop 
the property and provide detailed evidence of how the TSO is able to 
finance its concessionary rent for the duration of the agreement. It also 
requires information on the benefits that the agreement is expected to 
produce both for the TSO/s and Council and how these would be 
measured, and details of contingency arrangements should the agreement 
provide unsustainable. Consideration of the business plan is a fundamental 
element of the Council’s assessment process for all applications for 
community asset transfers, including concessionary rents.  

 
3.9 The Group feels that having something in writing in Redditch would be 

beneficial to both the voluntary sector and Borough Council as it would 
enable Officers to undertake a thorough assessment of the TSO/s 
intentions and its ability to deliver on any agreement. Importantly, this would 
require the TSO/s to be realistic about its ability to pay rent on a Council 
owned property. This could therefore prevent some TSO/s from forging 
ahead with an unrealistic application. It would also give the TSO/s the 
opportunity to explain what added-value in terms of benefits to the 
community a lease could bring, especially if this was proposed by a 
consortium of TSOs acting together.  

 
3.10 The Group therefore recommends that the submission of a detailed 

business case from any TSO looking to obtain a concessionary rent to 
manage a Council owned property for any period of time should become a 
fundamental feature of how the process would be managed by the Council. 

 
Recommendation Three: We RECOMMEND that Officers facilitate a 
series of workshops to advertise and promote the new policy to the 
third sector in Redditch 

 
3.11 During its investigations of how concessionary rents policies at other local 

authorities had been promoted following their introduction, Members were 
informed by Bristol City Council that they had facilitated a series of 
workshops to explain why the policy had been established. This enabled 
the Council to successfully engage with the local voluntary sector as it gave 

Page 36



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  11th December 2012 

 

 

local stakeholders the opportunity to quiz Council representatives about the 
policy and to gain an understanding of how its introduction could be of 
benefit to them. 

 
3.12 The Group feels that it would therefore be prudent for the Borough Council 

to hold its own workshop/s in the local community setting to help engage 
the local voluntary sector on this new policy. Members suggest that holding 
these workshops at various locations across the town where voluntary 
sector organisations operate or are likely to congregate would be more 
effective than holding a single event at the Town Hall.  

 
Recommendation Four: We RECOMMEND that the Council work with 
the local media and utilise social networks and its own website to 
publicise the new policy to the third sector in Redditch 

 
3.13 During its brief investigation into the proposed introduction of concessionary 

rents in Redditch, the Group was informed that it can be often be difficult for 
the local authorities to engage comprehensively with all third sector 
organisations in the particular area, often not least due to their sheer 
number and diversity. Members therefore feel it is imperative that the new 
policy is communicated effectively to ensure buy-in from the voluntary 
sector in Redditch.  

 
3.14 The Group suggests that the Council’s own website is an obvious facility for 

communicating this information to the voluntary sector in Redditch. 
Elsewhere, the Group proposes that the Council draw upon the increasing 
popularity of social networks as a free and effective means of informing 
TSOs in Redditch about the policy and how it might be of benefit to them. 
The Group suggests that relevant Officers work with representatives from 
the voluntary sector in Redditch regarding how social networks could be 
utilised most effectively. Finally, the Group proposes that Officers and, 
potentially, the Portfolio Holder for Corporate Management, Councillor Phil 
Mould, work with the local media to more widely publicise the new policy if 
eventually approved. 

 
Recommendation Five: We RECOMMEND that each approved 
concessionary rent agreement be for a minimum five year duration, 
include a three year break clause, and be monitored on an annual 
basis 

 
3.15 During its consultation with Bristol City Council, the Group was informed 

that a service level agreement is drawn up upon the completion of each 
community asset transfer to set out the terms of agreement between the 

Page 37



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  11th December 2012 

 

 

TSO and Council. Each agreement runs for five years and is monitored on 
an annual basis. 

 
3.16 Having also consulted with a representative from the local voluntary sector, 

the Group was informed that, for a number of TSOs, the length of the 
agreement would likely need to be for at least five years to make this a 
viable proposition for either an individual or consortium of TSOs. This would 
be especially applicable if they were looking to rent a Council owned 
property and possessed any significant plans during its occupation, 
including for possible redevelopment, or if the TSO/s was in the process of 
bidding for a Council grant and required a longer term lease to make this 
practicable.  

 
3.17 The Group is aware that shorter-term leases, e.g. for a maximum three year 

period, could appear more suitable for the Council as it would prevent the 
Council from being tied into a long term period with a TSO unable to satisfy 
the terms of the agreement. In light of this, the Group recommends that a 
three year break clause be included in all five year lease agreements as an 
insurance measure to legally enable the Council to end a lease in the event 
of this becoming necessary.  

 
3.18 The Group feel that this arrangement would therefore provide legal security 

for the Council in the form of the three-year break clause, and an incentive 
for a TSO/s to rent a Council owned property for at least a five year period if 
it acted in accordance with its original agreement with the Council.  

 
Recommendation Six: We RECOMMEND that the Council undertake a 
review of the approved policy twenty-four months after its inception 

 
3.19 The Group was informed that Bristol City Council was about to undertake 

its first comprehensive review of the Community Asset Transfer Policy it 
introduced in 2010. It was thought the undertaking of a review after a two 
year period was timely as it would enable the Council to accurately assess 
what had worked well and what had not worked so well since the policy’s 
implementation. The Council should therefore be in a position to make 
changes to the policy accordingly to both its own benefit and that of the 
local voluntary sector.  

 
3.20 The Group recommends that the Borough Council also undertakes a 

thorough review of its own policy twenty-four months after its inception 
should it eventually be approved. The Group feels that this would be a 
suitable point to evaluate how the policy has worked in practice as it would 

Page 38



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  11th December 2012 

 

 

provide sufficient opportunity for trends to emerge that could be identified 
and addressed by relevant Officers.  

 
Recommendation Seven: We RECOMMEND that the Council refers all 
third sector organisations in Redditch looking to obtain a 
concessionary rent for a Council owned commercial property to the 
Ethical Property Foundation for independent advice on renting and 
managing properties. 

 
3.21 The Group was made aware during its investigations that Bristol City 

Council had worked in partnership with the Ethical Property Foundation 
when promoting its Community Asset Transfer Policy in 2010 following its 
introduction. The Foundation, a registered charity, provides comprehensive 
advice to TSOs on property issues. This includes the provision of expert 
guidance to enable the TSO to fulfil their property objectives. According to 
its own website, the consultation falls into six main area, covering: a 
feasibility study to assess the viability of owning or renting properties; 
financial advice; improving premises;  making best use of a property; 
operational management advice; and developing premises. Since 2005, the 
Foundation has supported over 1,000 TSOs to rent, buy, let, or manage a 
property.  

 
3.22 It is understood that the Foundation is in the process of launching its full 

property advice service nationally to provide assistance to many more 
TSOs. It has so far only been able to provide this full service to TSOs 
based in London or the South West.  

 
3.23 Therefore, the Group feels that the expertise held by the Foundation could 

be extremely beneficial to TSOs in Redditch who are looking to rent a 
Council owned commercial property, yet require some assistance at any 
stage of the process. This might involve drawing upon the Foundation’s 
expertise when developing a detailed business case outlining their plans for 
a particular property, as already recommended by the Group. Furthermore, 
the Group suggests that this arrangement would ultimately be of benefit to 
the Council as it would likely strengthen the proposals from each TSO for 
renting a Council owned property and give the TSO/s a much greater 
appreciation of how this should be managed in the event of a successful 
application. Ultimately, this could strengthen the overall concessionary 
rents process.  

 
 

Page 39



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  11th December 2012 

 

 

Recommendation Eight: We RECOMMEND that the Council provide 
greater clarity on all concessions available to the third sector in 
Redditch 

 
3.24 On a related matter, the Group feels that the introduction of the proposed 

policy for offering concessionary rents for TSOs in Redditch represents an 
ideal opportunity for the Council to provide greater clarity on what 
concessions are available to the local voluntary sector.  

 
3.25 The Group was informed that the Council currently offers free use of the 

Civic Suite at the Town Hall to certain TSOs. It is understood that any new 
organisation requesting this privilege must apply in writing to the Council’s 
Democratic Services Manager for permission, in consultation with the 
Portfolio Holder for Corporate Management, Councillor Phil Mould. 
Concessionary use is usually reserved for business meetings and does 
extend to fund raising activities. These bookings may be cancelled by the 
Council at short notice if it is in urgent need for the meeting room space.  

 
3.26 During its conversation with a third sector representative in Redditch, the 

Group was advised that this was another example of a concessionary rate 
offered by the Council which needed to be transparent and clear for all 
applicable organisations. The representative was not of the understanding 
that all TSOs in Redditch were aware of this particular concession. 

 
3.27 The Group therefore recommends that the Council should provide much 

greater clarity on this and all concessions available to the third sector in 
Redditch. The Borough Council’s own website is an obvious facility for 
communicating this information more widely.  

 
Financial Implications 

 
3.28 It is possible that a small amount of funding would be required to finance 

the operation of a series of workshops to advertise the new policy. 
However, it is expected that these costs would be minimal, especially if 
these were held in a local community centre as suggested.  

 
Legal Implications 

 
3.29 There are no specific legal implications. 
 
 
 
 

Page 40



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  11th December 2012 

 

 

Service / Operational Implications 
 
3.30 The review was launched as a pre-decision scrutiny exercise following a 

decision by Officers to create a new policy for offering concessionary rents 
to third sector organisations for Council owned commercial properties in 
Redditch. The Group’s final recommendations are intended to compliment 
and enhance this proposed new policy.  

 
3.31 There are no other specific implications.  
 

Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications 
 
3.32 It is expected that the new policy will create a fairer, open and transparent 

process for third sector organisations to apply for concessionary rents for 
Council owned properties in Redditch. It is therefore hoped that this will 
improve the level of service that the Council provides for the local voluntary 
sector.  

 
3.33 There are no other specific implications.  

 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

No specific risks have been identified. 
 
5. APPENDICES 
 

No appendices 
 
6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

 Bristol City Council, Community Asset Transfer Policy (2010) 
 Hull City Council, Community Premises Pack (2010) 

  
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name: Michael Craggs, Democratic Services Officer, on behalf of the 
Concessionary Rents Pre-Scrutiny Short, Sharp Review Group 
E Mail: michael.craggs@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk  
Tel: (01527) 64252 Extn: 3267 
 

Page 41



Page 42



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 11th December 2012 
 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – SIX MONTH REVIEW OF THE 
COMMITTEE FUNCTION 
 

Relevant Portfolio Holder Councillor Phil Mould, Portfolio Holder for 
Corporate Management. 

Portfolio Holder Consulted N/A 

Relevant Head of Service Claire Felton, Head of Legal, Equalities 
and Democratic Services 

Ward(s) Affected No specific ward relevance. 
Non-Key Decision  
 
1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 
 This report reviews the operation of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee for the 

first six months of 2012/13.  The report is designed to give members of the 
committee the opportunity to review and reflect on achievements to date and to 
consider the direction of the committee for the remainder of the municipal year. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 The Committee is asked to RESOLVE that 
 

1) the suggestions detailed within the report be considered and 
appropriate actions, if any, be identified to develop the Overview and 
Scrutiny process in Redditch; and 

 
2) the report be noted.  

 
3. KEY ISSUES 

 
Background 
 

3.1 All Committees at Redditch Borough Council, including the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee, are required to review the operation of the Committee on an 
annual basis.  Traditionally this review has taken place at the end of the 
municipal year.  The timing of the review has not always been suitable for the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee as it has tended to coincide with the 
finalisation of the Committee’s Annual Report and therefore has often been 
regarded as duplication. 

 
3.2 However, it is important to review the operation of the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee on a regular basis, separately to recording the achievements of the 
Committee during the year.  Regular monitoring of the Committee function can 
contribute to continuous improvement in Overview and Scrutiny, enables the 
Committee to make best use of resources and ensures that the work of the 
Committee reflects the needs and priorities of residents.   

Agenda Item 6Page 43



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 11th December 2012 
 
 
3.3 A review of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee is also timely in a context of 

change at both the local authority and within local government in general.  In 
recent years, the introduction of shared services, with Bromsgrove and other 
District Councils and service transformation has resulted in significant changes to 
service delivery.  Redditch Borough Council, like many local authorities in the 
country, also has to make key choices about service delivery and budgetary 
expenditure at a time when the local government grant has been reduced.  An 
effective Overview and Scrutiny process needs to be able to both respond to 
these circumstances and help to manage further developments to the benefit of 
local people. 
 
Current Operation  

 
3.4 There are a number of elements in the current operation of the Overview and 

Scrutiny process in Redditch which reflect best practice including: 
 

• Non-Executive Members in Redditch have traditionally been supportive and 
enthusiastic champions of Overview and Scrutiny.  They have determined 
which subjects to review as befits a Member-led process.   

• Overview and Scrutiny Members have completed a number of detailed policy 
reviews in recent years.  The quality of this review work was recognised by 
the Centre for Public Scrutiny (CfPS), the national co-ordinating body for 
Overview and Scrutiny, in 2010 when Members were awarded a 
commendation in the national good scrutiny awards for a review of the former 
Neighbourhood Groups. 

• Policy reviews tend to involve representatives of all political parties on the 
Council and have traditionally been undertaken in an apolitical manner in 
accordance with national best practice. 

• The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has developed a constructive working 
relationship with members of the Executive Committee.  In 2011/12 this was 
reflected in the Executive Committee’s response to scrutiny reports when 47 / 
54 recommendations were approved. 

• The Council’s constitution requires that the Chair and Vice Chair of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee be members of the opposition party, in 
accordance with national best practice. 

• The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has a positive working relationship 
with representatives of the local press who regularly attend meetings of the 
Committee and help to communicate scrutiny work to the public.  In 2011/12 
31 articles were published in the local press on scrutiny subjects.  

• In accordance with national best practice information about the Overview and 
Scrutiny process is provided on dedicated web pages on the Council’s 
website. 

• In line with national best practice the Council has emphasised its commitment 
to Overview and Scrutiny by retaining the support of two Officers with lead 

Page 44



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 11th December 2012 
 

responsibility for Overview and Scrutiny in the new Democratic shared 
service. 

 
   Development Opportunities 
 

Portfolio Holder Annual Reports 
 
3.5 Each year the Portfolio Holders at the Council attend a meeting of the Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee to present a Portfolio Holder Annual Report.  The 
Portfolio Holder Annual Report process was introduced in 2007/08 and was 
intended to enable the Committee to hold individual Portfolio Holders to account.  
In the first few years the process provided the Committee with an opportunity to 
learn about the remit of each Portfolio Holder.  In recent years the Committee has 
received a written report outlining the performance of services within the remit of 
each Portfolio Holder, on the basis of which a number of questions have been 
asked of the Portfolio Holder.  

 
3.6 As with any established practice the Portfolio Holder Annual Report has evolved 

over the years and now exists in a question and answer format that in many 
regards is forming the primary focus of each Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
meeting.  Members are asked to consider the elements of the report listed below 
and the extent to which these are effectively meeting their purpose; 

 
• The written report takes a significant amount of time and resources to 

complete, including input from relatively senior Officers.   
• The Portfolio Holder Annual Reports most frequently have been received for 

noting by the Committee rather than resulting in any constructive action.   
• Only 6 recommendations have been made following receipt of Portfolio Holder 

Annual Reports in the five years that the process has been in operation.   
• Due to the number of questions and the length of responses the Portfolio 

Holder Annual Report frequently requires up to an hour for consideration 
during a Committee meeting.  This lengthens the duration of Committee 
meetings significantly. 

• The majority of Portfolio Holders are accompanied by relatively senior Officers 
when they attend meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to present 
their Annual Reports.  This involvement of senior Officers in the process could 
be considered an expensive use of resources. 

• Portfolio Holders in Redditch do not have any decision making powers as 
decisions are made collectively by the Executive Committee.  Consequently, 
the extent to which this process involves holding executive decision makers to 
account is debatable. 

 
3.7 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee will understandably be keen to hold the 

Executive Committee to account for decisions that are taken; indeed this was one 
of the main reasons for the original report process.  There are different ways in 
which the Executive Committee could be held to account including: 

Page 45



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 11th December 2012 
 
 

• Portfolio Holders attending specific meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee to help present reports concerning services within their remit as 
and when appropriate.  This is standard practice at a number of other local 
authorities. 

• Inviting Portfolio Holders to attend meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee to account for any problems identified in service delivery and 
performance.  This would typically occur following a period of detailed scrutiny 
work into a subject. 

• Engaging the Portfolio Holders in scrutiny of the Council’s budget through 
detailed discussions of budget proposals.  This could involve interviewing 
Portfolio Holders at a special meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, alongside relevant Officers, prior to the Council’s budget being set 
to ensure that proposals are robust. 

• Interviewing the Portfolio Holders when scrutinising shared services and 
service transformation.   It is likely that Portfolio holders would not be invited to 
participate in the full exercise but, rather, to submit evidence as a single part of 
an ongoing review. 

• Involving the Portfolio Holders as expert witnesses in policy review work. 
 
3.8 It is unlikely that if changes are made to the process each measure will be 

adopted at every meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and, indeed, 
for many items it may not be appropriate to request evidence from Portfolio 
Holders.  Instead Scrutiny Members will need to assess the most appropriate 
method to use to hold the Executive Committee and / or Portfolio Holders to 
account on a case by case basis.   

 
3.9 Current procedure rules, outlined in the Council’s constitution, would permit the 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee to utilise the methods listed above, where 
appropriate.  However, these procedures will need to be refined and carefully 
followed as Portfolio Holders should only be required to get involved in scrutiny 
work when it is considered to be a reasonable request in relation to the subject of 
a scrutiny review.  In addition, as a responsible body the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee needs to ensure that Portfolio Holders are only invited to provide 
evidence a reasonable number of times, as and when necessary.   

 
3.10 In each case consideration should be given as to how to ensure that contributions 

from Portfolio Holders, as well as accompanying Officers, represent an efficient 
use of resources.  Reasonable notice and a clear explanation of the reasons for 
inviting the Portfolio Holders and Officers should also be provided. 

 
3.11 In this context, Members are asked to consider the value of the Portfolio Holder 

Annual Reports in line with the current operation of the Council and whether, 
given the current focus on Shared Services and Transformation, an alternative 
approach might be considered.  

 

Page 46



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 11th December 2012 
 

Policy Review Work 
 

3.12 Policy review work has been a positive element of the Overview and Scrutiny 
process in Redditch for many years.  Currently two reviews are taking place: the 
Redditch Market review and the Arts and Culture Centre review.  There is 
capacity at member level for additional reviews to be undertaken as twenty non-
executive Councillors are available to participate in reviews supported by the 
Democratic Services Officers. 

 
3.13 Any Councillor (including Executive Committee members), Officer or local resident 

can suggest a subject for a policy review.  Overview and Scrutiny reviews can 
focus on any issue impacting on the local community, including services that are 
not provided by Redditch Borough Council.  This element of Overview and 
Scrutiny has been promoted by recent legislation and is an important power, given 
the shifting governance arrangements for many services. To ensure best use of 
resources the Overview and Scrutiny Committee may want to focus in the long-
term on prioritising key strategic purposes.  These strategic purposes are 
currently being considered in a draft form and include: 

 
• Keep my place safe and looking good; 
• Provide good things for me to do, see and visit; 
• Help me to find somewhere to live in my locality; 
• Enable good implementable development; 
• Do sensible things to improve my locality; 
• Help me run a successful business; 
• Help me back to financial independence (including skills and education); 
• Help me live my life independently (including health and activity); and 
• Enable others to work, or do what they need to do, to meet their purpose. 

  
 Pre-Decision Scrutiny: 
 
3.14 Pre-decision scrutiny is a standard part of Overview and Scrutiny nationally.  

Through pre-decision scrutiny Members can make a constructive contribution to 
the decision making process by: 

 
• using expert scrutiny skills to investigate the subject, and the implications of 

any proposals for service delivery, in detail; 
• consulting with local residents and / or service users about the subject; 
• gathering evidence from representatives of equivalent service providers in 

other parts of the country; and 
• providing a fresh perspective on an issue separate from the Officers 

presenting the report. 
 
3.15 The pre-decision scrutiny process has evolved over the past few years, from a 

relatively minor element of the process to an active component. A key barrier to 
effective pre-decision scrutiny has been access to reports.  The Council’s 

Page 47



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 11th December 2012 
 

constitution does not permit Overview and Scrutiny Members to access reports 
that are in a draft form prior to a meeting of the Executive.  In the early years of 
the Leader and Cabinet model of local democracy, Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee meetings took place prior to the finalisation of reports.  In these 
circumstances, the Committee received presentations on the subject, a situation 
which resulted in some concerns amongst scrutiny Members that they could not 
make recommendations based on all the evidence available. 

 
3.16  To address this concern in recent years Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

meetings have been scheduled to take place after reports for the Executive have 
been finalised.  However, at the moment meetings take place only one day after 
the publication of the reports providing Members with only 24 hours to consider 
the content of the report.   

 
3.17  Due to concerns about the relatively limited time available to Members to gather 

evidence and make considered recommendations the Committee recently 
launched two short, sharp reviews of items scheduled for the consideration of the 
Executive Committee.  Whilst these reviews managed to gather more information 
from a greater variety of sources than might otherwise have occurred some 
concerns have been expressed about these reviews including: 

 
• The review outcomes reflected the conclusions of a minority of Members as 

only two Members of the main Committee were appointed to each Short, 
Sharp Review.  For practical reasons, non-executive Members who had not 
been appointed to the Committee were effectively excluded.  (This occurred 
because each review was originally scheduled to have a maximum of one 
month to complete its work which was not adequate time to co-ordinate a 
larger review group). 

 
• Due to the restricted length of the reviews, predicated on the deadlines for 

the Executive Committee’s consideration of the core reports, each review 
was only able to undertake a limited number of meetings to gather evidence:  
the Sickness Policy Scrutiny review held seven meetings and interviewed six 
expert witnesses and the Concessionary Rents review held three reviews 
and interviewed three expert witnesses. 

 
3.18  Pre-decision scrutiny has the potential to develop further in line with best practice 

in order to address concerns about the Short, Sharp Review process.  In 
particular Members may want to consider selecting items from the Executive 
Committee Work Programme (which recently replaced the Forward Plan) a 
number of months in advance of the item’s presentation to the Executive 
Committee.  This would enable a larger number of non-executive members to be 
appointed to participate in the review if appropriate and would also provide a 
group with the time necessary to undertake all relevant work needed to enhance 
the value of scrutiny recommendations.  The arrangement would also represent a 
more appropriate use of Officer resources as greater flexibility could be applied 
with regard to the timing of interviews with expert witnesses. 

Page 48



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 11th December 2012 
 
 
3.19 However, for this development to occur improvements would need to be made to 

the Executive Work Programme.  Over the past two years items have tended to 
be added to the Work Programme, formerly the Forward Plan, at relatively short 
notice.  Few items have been listed on the plan for consideration four months or 
more in advance of the item’s presentation before the Executive Committee.  This 
curtails the Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s ability to plan pre-decision 
scrutiny exercises in advance. 

 
3.20 It is hoped that by focusing Overview and Scrutiny in this way Members will be 

able to make best use of the time available at Committee meetings and work to 
include as many other non scrutiny members as can be accommodated across 
the Council. 
 

Legal Implications 
 

3.21  There are no specific legal implications. 
 

Service / Operational Implications 
  
3.22 This review of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee may enable Members to 

identify actions that could be taken to improve the operation of the process. 
 
Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications 

 
3.23 There are no specific equalities and diversity implications. 
 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
4.1 There is a risk that if the Overview and Scrutiny Committee is not reviewed on a 

regular basis the work of the Committee will not relate to key strategic changes at 
the local authority nor meet the changing needs of local residents.   

 
4.2 There is a risk that some non-executive Councillors will feel disengaged from 

Overview and Scrutiny and marginalised in the local democratic process if only 
limited opportunities are provided to engage in Task Group (policy review) work. 

  
5. APPENDICES 

 
There are no appendices to this report. 

 
6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
How to Kill Overview and Scrutiny, adapted from “An Overview of Scrutiny:  A 
Triumph of Context over Structure, (2004), R Ashworth and S Snape. 
 

 

Page 49



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 11th December 2012 
 
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name: Jess Bayley, Democratic Services Officer, on behalf of the Chair of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
email: jess.bayley@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk 
Tel.: (01527) 64252 Ext: 3268 

Page 50



 
 

  
P

or
tfo

lio
 H

ol
de

r 
A

nn
ua

l R
ep

or
t 

P
or

tfo
lio

: L
ei

su
re

 a
nd

 T
ou

ris
m

 
P

or
tfo

lio
 H

ol
de

r,
 C

ou
nc

ill
or

 L
uk

e 
S

te
ph

en
s 

 
Y

ea
r:

 2
01

2/
13

 
�

Agenda Item 7Page 51



1.
 

E
xe

cu
ti

ve
 S

u
m

m
ar

y 
 1.

1.
 

P
le

as
e 

p
ro

vi
d

e 
a 

su
m

m
ar

y 
o

f 
se

rv
ic

es
 /a

re
as

 c
o

ve
re

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e 

re
m

it
 o

f 
th

e 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

.  
 

 
 

2.
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

  
2.

1.
 

P
le

as
e 

d
et

ai
l a

re
as

 o
f 

g
o

o
d

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
p

as
t 

ye
ar

.  
 

C
u

lt
u

ra
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

 P
al

ac
e 

Th
ea

tr
e 

 � 
In

cr
ea

se
d 

th
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t’s

 c
ap

ac
ity

 to
 c

on
ce

nt
ra

te
 m

or
e 

tim
e 

on
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 th
e 

cu
st

om
er

 s
er

vi
ce

 b
y 

im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

a 
ce

nt
ra

l 
m

an
ag

em
en

t s
ys

te
m

. T
hi

s 
is

 a
 b

es
po

ke
 s

of
tw

ar
e 

sc
rip

t t
ha

t a
ut

om
at

ic
al

ly
 u

pd
at

es
 th

e 
sh

ow
 c

on
tr

ac
ts

 to
 th

e 
te

ch
ni

ca
l, 

pa
ym

en
t a

nd
 

bo
ok

in
g 

sy
st

em
 w

hi
ch

 w
er

e 
al

l d
on

e 
m

an
ua

lly
 b

ef
or

e.
 

� 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 p

er
fo

rm
er

s 
ag

en
ts

, t
o 

de
ve

lo
p 

ne
w

 a
re

as
 o

f w
or

ki
ng

, d
iv

er
si

fy
in

g 
th

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
s 

at
 th

e 
T

he
at

re
 a

nd
 s

tr
en

gt
he

ni
ng

 c
on

tr
ac

tin
g 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

? 
� 

R
ev

is
ed

 th
e 

pr
ic

in
g 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
to

 m
ak

e 
it 

m
or

e 
fle

xi
bl

e 
an

d 
re

sp
on

si
ve

 to
 c

us
to

m
er

 n
ee

ds
 th

us
 a

llo
w

in
g 

fle
dg

lin
g 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 a

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l a
re

na
 a

t a
n 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 c

os
t. 

 T
hi

s 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

s 
on

 s
ite

 a
nd

 th
e 

to
ta

l n
um

be
r 

of
 h

ou
rs

 th
e 

si
te

 w
as

 o
pe

n.
  

� 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 m

ar
ke

tin
g 

di
sp

la
ys

 a
ro

un
d 

th
e 

bu
ild

in
g 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
ed

 s
ig

na
ge

 in
 th

e 
bo

x 
of

fic
e 

ar
ea

s 
ar

e 
as

si
st

in
g 

pe
op

le
 fi

nd
in

g 
th

ei
r 

w
ay

 
ar

ou
nd

 th
e 

bu
ild

in
g 

m
or

e 
ef

fic
ie

nt
ly

 a
nd

 ta
ke

s 
ad

va
nt

ag
e 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
 m

ar
ke

ts
 o

f u
pc

om
in

g 
ev

en
ts

.  
� 

T
he

 te
am

 h
as

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 h
ire

r 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
s 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

in
g 

to
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

av
in

gs
 th

at
 w

e 
ha

ve
 s

ig
ne

d 
up

 to
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 b
ud

ge
t 2

01
2/

13
 r

ou
nd

.  
  

 A
rt

s 
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
 � 

A
V

C
C

 P
ub

lic
 A

rt
 P

ro
je

ct
 w

as
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 a
nd

 in
st

al
le

d 
al

on
gs

id
e 

th
e 

fo
ot

pa
th

 o
f A

rr
ow

 V
al

le
y.

 
 

 

Page 52



  E
ve

n
ts

 
 � 

T
he

re
 w

er
e 

a 
to

ta
l o

f 3
2 

B
or

ou
gh

 le
d 

ev
en

ts
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

to
w

n 
w

hi
ch

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 in

te
rn

at
io

na
l, 

an
d 

lo
ca

l a
ge

nd
as

 e
.g

. T
he

 
O

ly
m

pi
c 

T
or

ch
 R

el
ay

 a
nd

 th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 F

or
um

’s
 B

an
ds

ta
nd

 e
ve

nt
. T

he
 e

ve
nt

s 
ai

m
ed

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 s
er

ie
s 

of
 fr

ee
 d

iv
er

si
on

ar
y 

cu
ltu

ra
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

es
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
. A

 to
ta

l o
f 6

8,
00

0 
pe

op
le

 a
tte

nd
ed

 th
e 

ev
en

ts
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e.
 

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
en

tr
es

 
 � 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
bo

ok
in

gs
 a

cr
os

s 
al

l C
om

m
un

ity
 C

en
tr

es
.  

W
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 V
ol

un
ta

ry
 G

ro
up

s 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 k
ey

 in
iti

at
iv

es
 in

cl
ud

in
g:

 
o

 
F

ac
ili

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

“R
et

hi
nk

” 
m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 p

ro
je

ct
. T

he
 s

es
si

on
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 1
2 

m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 s
uf

fe
rs

 w
ith

 o
cc

up
at

io
na

l t
he

ra
py

 
se

ss
io

ns
. 

o
 

F
ac

ili
ta

te
d 

th
e 

C
hr

on
ic

 O
bs

tr
uc

tiv
e 

P
ul

m
on

ar
y 

D
is

or
de

r W
or

ks
ho

ps
 w

hi
ch

 d
el

iv
er

s 
sp

ec
ia

lis
t p

hy
si

ot
he

ra
py

 a
nd

 m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f 
th

e 
di

se
as

e 
w

or
ks

ho
ps

.  
 F

o
rg

e 
M

ill
 M

u
se

um
 &

 B
o

ar
d

sl
ey

 A
b

b
ey

 V
is

it
o

r 
C

en
tr

e 
 � 

T
he

 M
us

eu
m

 h
as

 in
tr

od
uc

ed
 a

 c
ov

er
 fo

r 
th

e 
cl

oi
st

er
 a

re
a 

w
ith

 s
po

ns
or

sh
ip

 m
on

ey
 fr

om
 th

e 
C

ho
os

e 
H

ow
 Y

ou
 M

ov
e 

2 
in

iti
at

iv
e 

(£
6K

).
  T

he
 n

ew
 c

ov
er

 e
na

bl
es

 th
e 

ve
nu

e 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 e
ve

ni
ng

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

s 
an

d 
of

fe
rs

 th
e 

ve
nu

e 
gr

ea
te

r f
le

xi
bi

lit
y 

by
 e

ffe
ct

iv
el

y 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

 th
e 

ve
nu

es
 v

is
ito

r 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 

� 
P

ro
m

ot
io

n 
as

 a
 w

ed
di

ng
 v

en
ue

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

ly
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
w

ith
 2

 w
ed

di
ng

s 
ta

ki
ng

 p
la

ce
 th

is
 c

al
en

da
r 

ye
ar

 a
nd

 fu
rt

he
r 

pr
om

ot
io

ns
 p

la
nn

ed
 it

 is
 h

op
ed

 th
at

 th
er

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
ex

pa
ns

io
n 

of
 th

is
 a

re
a 

of
 o

pe
ra

tio
n.

   
� 

T
he

 r
es

to
ra

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
B

oa
rd

sl
ey

 A
bb

ey
 r

ui
ns

 w
as

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
a 

£1
48

K
 fu

nd
in

g 
gr

an
t f

ro
m

 N
at

ur
al

 E
ng

la
nd

. T
hi

s 
ha

s 
st

ab
ili

se
d 

th
e 

sc
he

du
le

d 
an

ci
en

t m
on

um
en

t a
nd

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

 r
ed

uc
ed

 th
e 

co
st

 b
ur

de
n 

to
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
fo

r 
th

e 
ne

xt
 1

0 
ye

ar
s.

 
 P

o
si

ti
ve

 A
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

 
 � 

R
B

C
 le

d 
a 

co
ns

or
tia

 fu
nd

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

m
ad

e 
up

 fr
om

 th
ird

 s
ec

to
r 

ag
en

ci
es

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 s
er

ie
s 

of
 P

os
iti

ve
 A

ct
iv

ity
 Y

ou
th

 S
es

si
on

 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

 to
 c

om
m

en
ce

 in
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

01
3 

(£
12

0K
 fu

nd
in

g 
fr

om
 W

C
C

) 
   

Page 53



   S
p

o
rt

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

 S
p

o
rt

s 
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
an

d
 P

h
ys

ic
al

 A
ct

iv
it

y 
 

• 
D

el
iv

er
ed

 a
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

l C
om

m
un

ity
 S

po
rt

s 
D

ay
 a

t t
he

 A
bb

ey
 S

ta
di

um
, a

tte
nd

ed
 b

y 
in

 e
xc

es
s 

of
 2

00
0 

pe
op

le
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
cl

ub
s 

to
 

at
tr

ac
t m

or
e 

m
em

be
rs

. 
• 

W
or

ke
d 

in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 N

E
W

 C
ol

le
ge

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 a

n 
ap

pr
en

tic
es

hi
p 

sc
he

m
e,

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt

 B
R

A
V

O
 v

ol
un

te
er

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 
T

hr
ee

 
ap

pr
en

tic
e 

ro
le

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
em

pl
oy

ed
 in

 D
ec

em
be

r.
  

• 
In

tr
od

uc
ed

 t
he

 S
po

rt
s 

M
ak

er
s 

sc
he

m
e 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 o

ffe
r 

re
si

de
nt

s 
th

e 
op

po
rt

un
ity

 t
o 

vo
lu

nt
ee

r 
in

 s
po

rt
, 

in
 r

et
ur

n 
fo

r 
w

or
k 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
an

d 
co

ac
hi

ng
 q

ua
lif

ic
at

io
ns

. T
hi

s 
is

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
S

po
rt

s 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 c

oa
ch

in
g 

bu
rs

ar
y 

sc
he

m
e.

 C
ur

re
nt

ly
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

ov
er

 
10

0 
S

po
rt

s 
M

ak
er

s 
re

gi
st

er
ed

. 
• 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
ad

ul
t 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
io

n 
in

 S
po

rt
 (

N
I8

) 
in

 R
ed

di
tc

h,
 t

hr
ou

gh
 m

or
e 

ta
rg

et
ed

 c
om

m
un

ity
 p

ro
gr

am
m

es
, 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
w

or
ki

ng
 a

nd
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
A

bb
ey

 S
ta

di
um

 p
ro

je
ct

. 
• 

T
hr

ou
gh

 s
ho

rt
 b

re
ak

s 
fu

nd
in

g 
de

liv
er

ed
 a

 s
uc

ce
ss

fu
l s

ix
 w

ee
k 

pr
oj

ec
t w

he
re

 a
 g

ro
up

 o
f d

is
ab

le
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 to
ok

 p
ar

t i
n 

a 
va

rie
ty

 
of

 o
ut

do
or

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

be
ll 

bo
at

in
g,

 c
an

oe
in

g,
 a

rc
he

ry
, r

oc
k 

cl
im

bi
ng

 a
nd

 te
am

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
ac

tiv
iti

es
. A

fte
r 

so
m

e 
po

si
tiv

e 
fe

ed
ba

ck
 fr

om
 p

ar
en

ts
 w

e 
w

ill
 lo

ok
 to

 m
ak

e 
us

e 
of

 y
ea

r 
2 

fu
nd

in
g 

w
ith

 a
 s

im
ila

r 
pr

oj
ec

t  
• 

H
el

d 
th

e 
20

12
 S

po
rt

s 
A

w
ar

ds
, 

a 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

 e
ve

ni
ng

 h
el

d 
at

 T
he

 P
al

ac
e 

T
he

at
re

 w
he

re
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
25

0 
pe

op
le

 f
ro

m
 a

 w
id

e 
sp

ec
tr

um
 o

f 
sp

or
ts

 c
lu

bs
 a

tte
nd

ed
 t

he
 e

ve
nt

. 
M

et
tis

 A
er

os
pa

ce
 w

er
e 

th
e 

m
ai

n 
sp

on
so

rs
 o

f 
th

e 
ev

en
t 

w
ith

 s
om

e 
of

 t
he

 e
ve

nt
ua

l 
w

in
ne

rs
 b

ei
ng

 n
om

in
at

ed
 fo

r 
th

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
S

po
rt

s 
A

w
ar

ds
 

• 
D

el
iv

er
ed

 a
 r

an
ge

 o
f 

ta
rg

et
ed

 p
ro

gr
am

m
es

 f
oc

us
in

g 
on

 h
ea

lth
 i

nt
er

ve
nt

io
n 

an
d 

pr
ev

en
tio

n.
 T

he
se

 r
el

at
e 

to
 r

es
id

en
ts

 w
ith

 h
ea

lth
 

re
la

te
d 

ill
ne

ss
es

 a
nd

 in
cl

ud
e 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 s
uc

h 
as

 fa
lls

 p
re

ve
nt

io
n,

 m
ob

ili
ty

 c
la

ss
es

, s
po

rt
s 

an
d 

ex
er

ci
se

 to
 m

us
ic

 c
la

ss
es

. 
• 

S
ub

m
itt

ed
 a

 jo
in

t p
ro

po
sa

l w
ith

 R
ed

di
tc

h 
B

or
ou

gh
 C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
A

ge
 U

K
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 o
ld

er
 r

es
id

en
ts

 to
 b

ec
om

e 
m

or
e 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t a

nd
 

m
ak

e 
lif

es
ty

le
s 

ch
oi

ce
s 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 s

up
po

rt
 th

em
 to

 b
ec

om
e 

m
or

e 
fit

 a
nd

 a
ct

iv
e 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 is
su

es
. 

 S
p

o
rt

s 
C

en
tr

es
  

 • 
R

e-
in

tr
od

uc
ed

 F
re

e 
S

w
im

m
in

g 
fo

r 
un

de
r 

16
’s

 a
nd

 o
ve

r 
60

’s
. O

ve
r 

20
00

 p
eo

pl
e 

ha
d 

re
gi

st
er

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 O
ct

ob
er

. 

Page 54



• 
In

ve
st

ed
 £

72
k 

in
to

 A
rr

ow
 V

al
e 

an
d 

£1
80

k 
at

 K
in

gs
le

y,
 o

pe
ni

ng
 th

e 
ne

w
 S

pr
in

gs
 V

al
ue

 G
ym

 a
t A

rr
ow

 V
al

e 
an

d 
ne

w
 S

po
rt

s 
H

al
l F

lo
or

 
an

d 
re

fu
rb

is
hm

en
t o

f t
he

 G
ym

na
si

um
 a

t K
in

gs
le

y 
• 

A
ch

ie
ve

d 
Q

ue
st

 a
cc

re
di

ta
tio

n 
at

 A
bb

ey
 S

ta
di

um
, a

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t i

n 
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 c
en

tr
e 

on
ly

 b
ei

ng
 o

pe
n 

si
nc

e 
F

eb
ru

ar
y.

 
• 

P
ro

vi
de

d 
£4

0k
 In

ve
st

m
en

t i
nt

o 
P

itc
he

ro
ak

 G
ol

f C
ou

rs
e 

w
hi

ch
 h

as
 im

pr
ov

ed
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
nd

 h
as

 r
es

ul
te

d 
in

 a
 n

ew
 c

at
er

er
 r

un
ni

ng
 th

e 
ca

te
rin

g 
se

rv
ic

e.
 

• 
P

ro
vi

de
 fo

ur
 o

pe
n 

da
ys

 a
t A

bb
ey

 S
ta

di
um

 to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s.
 T

he
 e

ve
nt

s 
w

er
e 

at
te

nd
ed

 b
y 

ov
er

 4
,0

00
 p

eo
pl

e 
in

 to
ta

l. 
 T

hi
s 

ha
s 

he
lp

ed
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 th
e 

ac
hi

ev
em

en
t o

f t
he

 m
em

be
rs

hi
p 

ta
rg

et
s.

 
• 

22
00

 r
eg

ul
ar

 g
ym

 m
em

be
rs

hi
ps

 a
nd

 o
ve

r 
80

0 
ch

ild
re

n 
at

te
nd

in
g 

sw
im

m
in

g 
le

ss
on

s 
on

 a
 w

ee
kl

y 
ba

si
s 

• 
E

xt
en

de
d 

an
d 

en
ha

nc
ed

 th
e 

ex
er

ci
se

 to
 m

us
ic

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e,

 a
nd

 n
ow

 p
ro

vi
de

 6
5 

cl
as

se
s 

fo
r 

a 
va

rie
ty

 o
f a

ge
s 

an
d 

ab
ili

tie
s.

  
• 

S
ta

ff 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 le

is
ur

e 
re

la
te

d 
N

V
Q

’s
 w

hi
ch

 h
as

 h
el

pe
d 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 s

er
vi

ce
 d

el
iv

er
y 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t  

 
P

ar
ks

 a
n

d
 G

re
en

 S
p

ac
es

 
 

T
he

 m
aj

or
ity

 o
f 

th
e 

P
ar

ks
 a

nd
 G

re
en

 S
pa

ce
s 

ac
hi

ev
em

en
ts

 fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 2
01

2/
13

 h
av

e 
fo

rm
ed

 p
ar

t 
of

 th
e 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l S
er

vi
ce

s 
P

or
tfo

lio
 R

ep
or

t. 
 T

he
 f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

ts
 h

av
e 

a 
pr

ed
om

in
an

tly
 p

hy
si

ca
l 

ac
tiv

ity
 r

em
it 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t 

ou
r 

le
is

ur
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 i
n 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
w

id
er

 
ta

rg
et

s.
 

 
P

h
ys

ic
al

 A
ct

iv
it

y 
 

• 
T

he
 P

ar
ks

 a
nd

 G
re

en
 S

pa
ce

s 
te

am
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 a
 ‘P

ar
k 

R
un

’ e
ve

nt
 a

t A
rr

ow
 V

al
le

y 
C

ou
nt

ry
 P

ar
k 

th
at

 h
as

 in
 e

xc
es

s 
of

 1
20

 
pa

rt
ic

ip
an

ts
. 

P
ar

k 
R

un
 is

 a
 n

at
io

na
l e

ve
nt

, r
un

 e
ve

ry
 S

at
ur

da
y 

m
or

ni
ng

, p
ar

tic
ip

an
ts

 r
un

 5
k 

in
 a

 p
ar

k 
se

tti
ng

, e
ac

h 
w

ith
 th

ei
r 

ow
n 

ba
rc

od
e 

an
d 

pe
rs

on
al

 ti
m

e 
ke

ep
in

g 
an

d 
re

co
rd

 ta
rg

et
s.

 
 

T
he

 w
ee

kl
y 

ev
en

t i
s 

su
pp

or
te

d 
by

 P
ar

ks
 o

ffi
ce

rs
 w

ith
 th

e 
su

pp
or

t o
f a

 g
ro

w
in

g 
vo

lu
nt

ee
r 

ba
se

. 
 • 

T
he

 P
ar

ks
 a

nd
 G

re
en

 S
pa

ce
s 

te
am

 h
av

e 
m

ad
e 

gr
ea

t p
ro

gr
es

s 
w

ith
 th

e 
fo

rm
al

is
in

g 
of

 e
xt

er
na

l f
itn

es
s 

cl
as

se
s 

w
ith

in
 o

ur
 p

ar
ks

 
an

d 
op

en
 s

pa
ce

s 
al

on
gs

id
e 

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
 a

 fe
es

 a
nd

 c
ha

rg
es

 fr
am

ew
or

k.
 A

 n
ot

ab
le

 s
uc

ce
ss

 is
 in

 M
or

to
n 

S
ta

nl
ey

 P
ar

k 
w

ith
 b

ot
h 

fit
ne

ss
 c

la
ss

es
 a

nd
 c

ha
rit

ab
le

 e
ve

nt
s 

su
pp

or
te

d 
by

 th
e 

te
am

. 

Page 55



 • 
T

he
 te

am
 h

av
e 

su
pp

or
te

d 
lo

ca
l s

po
rt

s 
cl

ub
s 

an
d 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 w
ith

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f a
dd

iti
on

al
 e

ve
nt

s 
an

d 
ac

tiv
iti

es
; t

he
se

 
in

cl
ud

e 
cy

cl
in

g,
 c

yc
lo

 c
ro

ss
 a

nd
 o

rie
nt

ee
rin

g.
 

 E
ve

n
ts

 a
n

d
 A

ct
iv

it
ie

s 
 • 

S
up

po
rt

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 t

o 
th

e 
E

ve
nt

s 
te

am
 w

ith
 t

he
 m

an
y 

ev
en

ts
 t

ha
t 

ha
ve

 h
ap

pe
ne

d 
th

is
 y

ea
r;

 O
ly

m
pi

cs
, 

Ju
bi

le
e 

an
d 

sp
or

tin
g 

th
em

es
. 

 O
ffi

ce
rs

 h
av

e 
al

so
 s

up
po

rt
ed

 t
he

 b
oo

ki
ng

 a
nd

 a
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

of
 e

xt
er

na
l 

ev
en

ts
 w

ith
in

 p
ar

ks
 a

nd
 g

re
en

 
sp

ac
es

. 
 P

la
y 

 • 
T

he
 t

ea
m

 h
av

e 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 s
ev

er
al

 p
la

y 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 t

hr
ou

gh
ou

t 
th

e 
ye

ar
 a

nd
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 s
af

et
y 

in
sp

ec
tio

ns
 t

o 
al

l s
ite

s.
  

T
w

o 
pl

ay
 

ar
ea

s 
in

 M
ar

lfi
el

ds
 P

ar
k 

an
d 

R
ow

an
 C

re
sc

en
t 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
re

su
rf

ac
ed

. 
 T

he
 p

la
y 

ar
ea

 i
n 

G
lo

ve
r 

S
tr

ee
t 

ha
s 

se
en

 b
ot

h 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t t
o 

th
e 

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
an

d 
re

de
si

gn
 o

f t
he

 b
al

l c
ou

rt
 to

 r
ed

uc
e 

ne
ig

hb
ou

r 
co

nf
lic

t. 
 B

u
si

n
es

s 
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
 

S
p

o
n

so
rs

h
ip

  
 • 

T
he

 p
ol

ic
y 

fo
r 

R
ou

nd
ab

ou
t 

S
po

ns
or

sh
ip

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
pr

od
uc

ed
 a

nd
 a

gr
ee

d 
by

 e
le

ct
ed

 M
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 t
he

 o
ffi

ce
rs

 h
av

e 
co

m
m

en
ce

d 
w

or
k 

in
 th

is
 a

re
a.

  T
he

re
 a

re
 s

ev
en

 s
ite

s 
th

at
 h

av
e 

re
ce

iv
ed

 a
dv

er
tis

in
g 

ap
pr

ov
al

 a
nd

 th
at

 a
re

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r 
sp

on
so

rs
hi

p.
  

Fu
ll 

de
ta

ils
 

w
ill

 b
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
so

on
 o

n 
th

e 
R

B
C

 w
eb

 s
ite

.  
 

W
eb

si
te

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t  

 • 
T

he
 L

ei
su

re
 a

nd
 C

ul
tu

ra
l 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
(L

&
C

S
) 

te
am

 w
er

e 
on

e 
of

 t
he

 f
irs

t 
se

rv
ic

es
 t

o 
la

un
ch

 a
 n

ew
 i

m
pr

ov
ed

 L
ei

su
re

 W
eb

si
te

. 
 A

fte
r 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
cu

st
om

er
’s

 fe
ed

ba
ck

 r
eg

ar
di

ng
 th

e 
w

eb
pa

ge
s,

 L
ei

su
re

 c
om

m
en

ce
d 

w
or

k 
w

ith
 s

up
po

rt
 fr

om
 th

e 
w

eb
si

te
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t t

ea
m

 
to

 c
re

at
e 

a 
br

an
d 

ne
w

 lo
ok

 w
eb

si
te

. 
 T

hi
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 u
p-

to
-d

at
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n,

 p
ic

tu
re

s 
an

d 
lin

ks
 f

or
 a

 m
or

e 
in

te
ra

ct
iv

e 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

an
d 

br
an

d 
ne

w
 u

se
r 

fr
ie

nd
ly

 la
yo

ut
. 

It 
is

 s
til

l e
ar

ly
 d

ay
s 

bu
t 

a 
po

si
tiv

e 
ou

tc
om

e 
ha

s 
al

re
ad

y 
be

en
 in

de
nt

ifi
ed

 t
hr

ou
gh

 a
 d

ec
re

as
e 

in
 t

he
 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 1

 s
ta

r r
at

in
gs

. 

Page 56



    
R

o
o

m
 B

o
o

ki
n

g
s 

an
d

 C
ar

et
ak

in
g 

P
ro

vi
si

o
n 

 
 • 

C
ar

et
ak

in
g 

an
d 

R
oo

m
 B

oo
ki

ng
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
tr

an
sf

er
re

d,
 a

nd
 n

ow
 s

its
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 L
&

C
S

 B
us

in
es

s 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

T
ea

m
. 

A
 

se
am

le
ss

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 m
et

 w
ith

 a
ll 

in
vo

lv
ed

.  
O

ffi
ce

rs
 w

ill
 r

ev
ie

w
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
ov

er
 th

e 
ne

xt
 1

2 
m

on
th

s.
 

 2.
2 

   
P

le
as

e 
d

et
ai

l a
n

y 
ar

ea
s 

o
f 

co
n

ce
rn

in
g

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
 t

h
e 

ye
ar

. 
  

C
u

lt
u

ra
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

 P
al

ac
e 

Th
ea

tr
e 

 
 • 

T
he

 in
co

ns
is

te
nt

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 o

nl
in

e 
bo

ok
in

g 
sy

st
em

 h
as

 c
au

se
d 

th
e 

te
am

 to
 in

st
ig

at
e 

an
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t p
la

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
up

co
m

in
g 

se
as

on
. 

 A
rt

s 
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
 

 • 
D

ue
 to

 th
e 

vo
lu

m
e 

of
 th

e 
ev

en
ts

 c
at

er
ed

 fo
r 

in
 a

n 
ex

ce
pt

io
na

l y
ea

r 
an

d 
th

e 
le

an
in

g 
cu

rv
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

ne
w

 s
ha

re
d 

se
rv

ic
e 

A
rt

s 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t t

ea
m

 w
as

 n
ot

 a
s 

pr
oa

ct
iv

e 
as

 w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

id
ea

lly
 b

ee
n 

pl
an

ne
d.

 T
he

 te
am

 w
ill

 lo
ok

 to
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

is
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

ne
xt

 
fin

an
ci

al
 y

ea
r 

w
or

ki
ng

 in
 a

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 fr

am
ew

or
k.

 
 

E
ve

n
ts

 
 • 

D
ue

 to
 th

e 
de

m
an

d 
on

 th
e 

te
am

 in
 th

is
 e

xc
ep

tio
na

l y
ea

r 
of

 e
ve

nt
s 

th
e 

te
am

 w
er

e 
on

ly
 a

bl
e 

to
 d

ev
ot

e 
a 

lim
ite

d 
tim

e 
to

 th
e 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 a
n 

ev
en

ts
 to

ol
 k

it,
 p

ub
lis

he
d 

on
 th

e 
w

eb
-s

ite
 to

 in
fo

rm
 a

nd
 e

du
ca

te
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 o
n 

or
ga

ni
si

ng
 a

 p
ub

lic
 e

ve
nt

. 
  

Page 57



F
o

rg
e 

M
ill

 M
u

se
um

 &
 B

o
rd

es
le

y 
A

b
b

ey
 V

is
it

o
r 

C
en

tr
e 

 • 
T

he
 n

ew
 c

at
er

in
g 

pr
ov

id
er

 w
as

 p
ro

cu
re

d 
ha

lfw
ay

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

se
as

on
 w

hi
ch

 a
ffe

ct
ed

 th
e 

of
fe

r 
fo

r 
A

pr
il 

an
d 

M
ay

 o
f t

hi
s 

ye
ar

, h
ow

ev
er

 
si

nc
e 

th
en

 th
e 

ne
w

 s
er

vi
ce

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
a 

co
m

pl
et

e 
su

cc
es

s.
  

 
P

ar
ks

 a
n

d
 G

re
en

 S
p

ac
es

 
 

• 
N

o 
re

al
 c

on
ce

rn
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
id

en
tif

ie
d.

  
T

he
 y

ea
r 

in
 g

en
er

al
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

di
ffi

cu
lt 

w
ith

 u
ns

ea
so

na
l 

w
ea

th
er

 t
hr

ou
gh

ou
t 

th
e 

su
m

m
er

 
m

on
th

s 
ho

w
ev

er
 a

 n
ew

 t
ea

m
 h

as
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 s

uc
ce

ss
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
m

an
y 

ne
w

 s
ys

te
m

s 
th

at
 e

ns
ur

e 
co

nt
in

ue
d 

se
rv

ic
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

. 
• 

T
he

 v
ol

um
e 

of
 e

ve
nt

s 
co

m
bi

ne
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

un
se

as
on

al
 w

ea
th

er
 h

as
 c

au
se

d 
so

m
e 

pr
es

su
re

. 
 

S
p

o
rt

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

 
S

p
o

rt
s 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

an
d

 P
h

ys
ic

al
 A

ct
iv

it
y 

 
• 

D
ue

 t
o 

th
e 

di
ffi

cu
lty

 in
 e

ng
ag

in
g 

w
ith

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
th

er
e 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
a 

lo
w

er
 n

um
be

r 
of

 p
ar

tic
ip

an
ts

 t
ha

n 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 o

n 
so

m
e 

of
 t

he
 

S
po

rt
iv

at
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

, 
in

te
nd

ed
 f

or
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

ag
ed

 1
4-

25
 y

ea
rs

. 
T

hi
s 

ha
s 

no
w

 b
ee

n 
re

co
gn

is
ed

 f
or

 t
he

 la
tte

r 
pa

rt
 o

f 
th

e 
ye

ar
 

an
d 

nu
m

be
rs

 b
oo

ke
d 

on
to

 f
or

th
co

m
in

g 
co

ur
se

s 
ha

ve
 im

pr
ov

ed
 d

ue
 t

o 
im

pr
ov

ed
 e

ng
ag

em
en

t 
w

ith
 c

lu
bs

 a
nd

 N
E

W
 c

ol
le

ge
 a

nd
 u

se
 

of
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
m

ar
ke

tin
g 

te
ch

ni
qu

es
. 

 G
o

lf
 C

o
u

rs
e 

 • 
D

ue
 t

o 
on

e 
of

 t
he

 w
et

te
st

 y
ea

rs
 o

n 
re

co
rd

 t
he

 u
sa

ge
 o

f 
th

e 
co

ur
se

 d
ur

in
g 

sp
rin

g 
ha

s 
be

en
 lo

w
er

 t
ha

n 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 a

s 
th

e 
co

ur
se

 h
as

 
be

en
 c

lo
se

d 
an

d 
pa

rt
ic

ip
an

ts
 a

re
 in

cl
in

ed
 to

 s
to

p 
us

in
g 

th
e 

co
ur

se
 th

us
 g

et
tin

g 
ou

t o
f t

he
 h

ab
it 

of
 p

la
yi

ng
. T

hi
s 

ca
n 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
us

ag
e 

ac
ro

ss
 o

th
er

 p
er

io
ds

 o
f 

th
e 

ye
ar

 s
uc

h 
as

 s
um

m
er

 a
nd

 a
ut

um
n.

 H
ow

ev
er

, 
O

ffi
ce

rs
 a

re
 p

la
nn

in
g 

to
 c

ar
ry

 o
ut

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
n 

th
e 

co
ur

se
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
fo

rt
hc

om
in

g 
ye

ar
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
m

ar
ke

tin
g 

th
e 

fa
ci

lit
y 

m
or

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y.
 

 A
b

b
ey

 S
ta

d
iu

m
 

 

Page 58



• 
T

he
 t

ea
m

 h
av

e 
ex

pe
rie

nc
ed

 p
ro

bl
em

s 
m

ee
tin

g 
cu

st
om

er
 d

em
an

d 
an

d 
ex

pe
ct

at
io

ns
 d

ue
 t

o 
th

e 
lim

ite
d 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 o
f 

th
e 

te
le

ph
on

e 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
sy

st
em

. T
hi

s 
is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
co

nt
ra

ct
ua

l p
ro

bl
em

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
se

rv
ic

e 
pr

ov
id

er
s.

 
 

B
u

si
n

es
s 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

 
M

ar
ke

ti
n

g 
S

ch
ed

u
le

s 
an

d
 S

er
vi

ce
 p

ro
m

o
ti

o
n

s 
 

 • 
A

lig
ni

ng
 m

ar
ke

tin
g 

sc
he

du
le

s 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
di

ffi
cu

lt 
w

ith
 t

he
 n

ew
 t

ea
m

s 
m

er
gi

ng
 in

 t
he

 f
irs

t f
ew

 m
on

th
s 

of
 t

hi
s 

ye
ar

 
an

d 
th

e 
di

ve
rs

ity
 o

f 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e.
  

T
hi

s 
ha

s 
no

w
 m

uc
h 

im
pr

ov
ed

 w
ith

 s
ta

bi
lit

y 
an

d 
an

 u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 o

f 
ne

w
 r

ol
es

 a
nd

 r
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

an
d 

th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 w

or
k 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

as
 a

 w
ho

le
. 

 
R

o
o

m
 B

o
o

ki
n

g
s 

 
 • 

A
lth

ou
gh

 t
ak

in
g 

on
 t

he
 r

oo
m

 b
oo

ki
ng

s 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

 r
el

at
iv

el
y 

se
am

le
ss

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

to
 t

he
 c

us
to

m
er

, 
th

er
e 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
is

su
es

 b
eh

in
d 

th
e 

sc
en

es
 w

ith
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f p

eo
pl

e 
in

 th
e 

pa
st

 th
at

 h
av

e 
be

en
 in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 it
s 

pr
oc

es
s.

  T
hi

s 
ha

s 
no

w
 b

ee
n 

im
pr

ov
ed

 a
nd

 s
im

pl
ifi

ed
 

bu
t t

he
re

 is
 s

til
l a

 n
ee

d 
to

 r
ev

ie
w

 th
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

fu
rt

he
r.

 
 3.

 
T

h
e 

Y
ea

r 
A

h
ea

d
 

 
 

3.
1 

P
le

as
e 

de
ta

il 
th

e 
P

or
tfo

lio
 H

ol
de

r’s
 m

ai
n 

ar
ea

s 
of

 fo
cu

s 
in

 2
01

3/
14

 
 

C
u

lt
u

ra
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

 P
al

ac
e 

Th
ea

tr
e 

 � 
T

o 
su

st
ai

n 
an

d 
em

be
d 

th
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 o

pe
ra

tio
n 

ch
an

ge
s 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 in

 2
01

2 
an

d 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 g
ro

w
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

ud
ie

nc
es

.  
� 

T
o 

la
un

ch
 th

e 
im

pr
ov

ed
 w

eb
 b

as
ed

 “
on

-li
ne

” 
bo

ok
in

g 
sy

st
em

 a
nd

 to
 b

ui
ld

 o
n 

th
e 

so
ci

al
 m

ar
ke

tin
g 

el
em

en
t t

o 
im

pr
ov

e 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

in
cr

ea
se

 s
al

es
. 

  

Page 59



P
al

ac
e 

Y
o

u
th

 T
h

ea
tr

e 
(P

Y
T)

 
 � 

E
xp

lo
re

 w
ay

s 
to

 im
pl

em
en

t t
he

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
ed

 in
 th

e 
in

te
rn

al
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f t
he

 s
er

vi
ce

 to
 w

id
en

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

ap
pe

al
 a

nd
 

in
cr

ea
se

 th
ro

ug
h 

pu
t. 

 
 F

o
rg

e 
M

ill
 M

u
se

um
 &

 B
o

rd
es

le
y 

A
b

b
ey

 V
is

it
o

r 
C

en
tr

e 
 � 

T
he

 te
am

 w
ill

 lo
ok

 to
 e

xp
an

d 
th

e 
le

ar
ni

ng
 a

nd
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

of
fe

r 
at

 th
e 

si
te

 a
nd

 r
e-

 la
un

ch
 th

e 
A

bb
ey

 R
ui

ns
 a

s 
th

e 
ke

y 
hi

st
or

ic
al

 h
ea

rt
 

fo
r 

th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

. 
 P

o
si

ti
ve

 A
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

 � 
D

el
iv

er
 o

n 
th

e 
ou

tc
om

es
 c

om
m

itt
ed

 to
 in

 th
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

an
d 

th
e 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
 c

om
m

is
si

on
ed

 w
or

ks
. 

 A
rt

s 
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
 � 

S
pr

in
gs

 P
ub

lic
 A

rt
 P

ro
je

ct
 th

at
 w

as
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 w
ith

 N
E

W
 C

ol
le

ge
 s

tu
de

nt
s 

ha
s 

be
en

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 a

nd
 in

st
al

le
d 

in
 th

e 
C

hu
rc

h 
G

re
en

 
ar

ea
. 

  

S
p

o
rt

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

 
S

p
o

rt
s 

C
en

tr
es

   
 • 

F
re

e 
S

w
im

m
in

g
: 

C
on

tin
ua

tio
n 

of
 t

he
 f

re
e 

sw
im

m
in

g 
sc

he
m

e 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

a 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 a
ga

in
st

 t
ar

ge
t. 

M
on

th
ly

 P
ro

je
ct

 
m

ee
tin

gs
 w

ill
 b

e 
co

nt
in

ue
d 

to
 m

on
ito

r 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 a

nd
 s

ug
ge

st
 c

or
re

ct
iv

e 
ac

tio
n 

sh
ou

ld
 K

P
Is

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
m

et
. W

he
re

 p
os

si
bl

e 
O

ffi
ce

rs
 

w
ill

 li
nk

 fr
ee

 s
w

im
m

in
g 

in
to

 ta
rg

et
ed

 h
ea

lth
 p

ro
gr

am
m

es
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
an

d 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

io
n.

 
• 

H
ea

lt
h

 a
n

d
 F

it
n

es
s:

 C
on

tin
ue

 t
o 

in
cr

ea
se

 a
nd

 r
et

ai
n 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 f

itn
es

s 
M

em
be

rs
 a

t 
bo

th
 s

ite
s 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

ac
ce

ss
 f

or
 a

ll 
co

m
m

un
ity

 g
ro

up
s.

 Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 a
 m

ar
ke

tin
g 

pl
an

 a
nd

 s
al

es
 / 

re
te

nt
io

n 
pl

an
. W

he
re

 p
os

si
bl

e 
us

e 
th

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

as
 a

n 
en

tr
y 

an
d 

ex
it 

ro
ut

e 
fo

r t
ar

ge
te

d 
he

al
th

 p
ro

gr
am

m
es

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

of
 th

e 
fa

ci
lit

y 
an

d 
in

cr
ea

se
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n.

 

Page 60



• 
Q

u
es

t 
A

cc
re

d
it

at
io

n:
  

A
t 

A
bb

ey
 S

ta
di

um
 u

si
ng

 t
he

 r
ep

or
t 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 t
o 

id
en

tif
y 

ar
ea

s 
fo

r 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
to

 h
el

p 
su

pp
or

t 
co

nt
in

uo
us

 i
m

pr
ov

em
en

t. 
D

ev
el

op
 a

 S
er

vi
ce

 I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t 
P

la
n 

w
hi

ch
 i

s 
so

ur
ce

d 
fr

om
 a

 v
ar

ie
ty

 o
f 

re
po

rt
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
Q

ue
st

 
A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
. 

• 
A

b
b

ey
 S

ta
d

iu
m

: R
ev

ie
w

 A
bb

ey
 S

ta
di

um
’s

 f
irs

t y
ea

r 
of

 o
pe

ra
tio

n 
ac

ro
ss

 a
 r

an
ge

 o
f 

in
di

ca
to

rs
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

in
co

m
e,

 u
sa

ge
, s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n,

 
en

er
gy

 u
sa

ge
 e

tc
. 

D
ev

el
op

 a
n 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 s

ui
te

 o
f 

K
P

I’s
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 u
nd

er
pi

nn
ed

 b
y 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

m
ea

su
re

s.
 E

ns
ur

e 
ou

ts
ta

nd
in

g 
sn

ag
s/

 d
ef

ec
ts

, p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 p
rio

rit
y 

de
fe

ct
s,

 a
re

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

 p
rio

r 
to

 th
e 

12
 m

on
th

 d
ef

ec
t p

er
io

d 
ex

pi
rin

g.
 

A
ct

io
n:

 C
on

tin
ue

 w
ith

 d
ef

ec
t 

re
po

rt
in

g,
 m

on
th

ly
 m

ee
tin

gs
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

n 
an

nu
al

 r
ev

ie
w

 t
o 

es
ta

bl
is

h 
pr

og
re

ss
 a

nd
 o

ut
st

an
di

ng
 

de
fe

ct
s.

 
• 

D
u

al
 U

se
: 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e 

D
ua

l 
U

se
 (

D
U

) 
A

gr
ee

m
en

ts
. 

B
en

ch
m

ar
k 

ag
ai

ns
t 

ot
he

r 
D

U
 A

gr
ee

m
en

ts
, 

dr
af

t 
re

po
rt

 a
nd

 i
m

pl
em

en
t 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

pl
an

. 
• 

D
u

al
 U

se
: 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
ct

iv
ity

 p
ro

gr
am

m
es

, 
es

ta
bl

is
h 

ne
w

 a
ct

iv
ity

 p
ro

gr
am

m
es

 t
o 

in
cr

ea
se

 r
ev

en
ue

, 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

io
n 

an
d 

su
pp

or
te

d 
ta

rg
et

ed
 h

ea
lth

 p
ro

gr
am

m
es

. 
  S

p
o

rt
s 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

an
d

 P
h

ys
ic

al
 A

ct
iv

it
y 

 
 

• 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 S
p

o
rt

: 
W

or
k 

in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 t

o 
de

ve
lo

p 
a 

ra
ng

e 
of

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
to

 in
cr

ea
se

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
ac

ro
ss

 d
is

ab
le

d 
re

si
de

nt
s.

 T
hi

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
un

de
rp

in
ne

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
gr

an
t 

fu
nd

in
g 

su
bm

is
si

on
s 

e.
g 

- 
S

po
rt

 E
ng

la
nd

 (
if 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
).

 T
hi

s 
w

ill
 i

nc
lu

de
 a

 m
ix

tu
re

 o
f 

ph
ys

ic
al

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
, t

ra
in

in
g 

an
d 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
fo

r 
st

af
f b

ut
 m

or
e 

im
po

rt
an

tly
 a

ct
iv

ity
 p

ro
gr

am
m

es
 fo

r 
di

sa
bl

ed
 g

ro
up

s.
 E

st
ab

lis
h 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 c

on
ta

ct
s 

an
d 

se
t u

p 
a 

di
sa

bi
lit

y 
ne

tw
or

k 
gr

ou
p 

to
 c

o-
or

di
na

te
 p

ro
gr

am
m

es
/fu

nd
in

g 
su

bm
is

si
on

s.
 

• 
A

re
a 

o
f 

H
ig

h
es

t 
N

ee
d

: 
 W

or
k 

w
ith

 th
e 

W
in

ya
te

s 
A

lli
an

ce
 to

 o
ffe

r 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 to

 ta
ck

le
 k

no
w

n 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l i

ss
ue

s 
in

 th
e 

A
re

a 
of

 H
ig

he
st

 N
ee

d.
 S

et
 u

p 
a 

su
b 

gr
ou

p 
to

 fo
cu

s 
on

 a
 h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 w
el

l b
ei

ng
 p

ro
je

ct
 in

 th
e 

lo
ca

lit
y 

w
ith

 a
 s

tr
on

g 
em

ph
as

is
 o

n 
S

po
rt

 a
nd

 
P

hy
si

ca
l A

ct
iv

ity
. 

• 
V

o
lu

n
te

er
in

g
: 

 Im
pl

em
en

t t
he

 S
po

rt
s 

M
ak

er
s 

an
d 

B
R

A
V

O
 s

ch
em

es
 in

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
 B

R
A

V
O

 c
o-

or
di

na
to

r 
em

pl
oy

ed
 a

nd
 w

ith
 a

 ta
rg

et
ed

 
w

or
k 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e.

 S
po

rt
s 

M
ak

er
s 

sc
he

m
e 

pr
om

ot
ed

 / 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

T
ow

n.
 

• 
S

tr
at

eg
y:

 C
om

pl
et

e 
th

e 
S

po
rt

s 
an

d 
P

hy
si

ca
l A

ct
iv

ity
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
w

ith
 m

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 k

ey
 p

ar
tn

er
s,

 a
nd

 in
flu

en
ce

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
re

se
ar

ch
. 

• 
O

ld
er

 P
eo

p
le

: 
D

ev
el

op
 a

 r
an

ge
 o

f a
ct

iv
iti

es
 f

or
 O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e,

 ty
in

g 
in

 w
ith

 th
e 

A
ge

in
g 

W
el

l S
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d 
F

un
di

ng
 S

tr
ea

m
. S

ub
m

it 
a 

fu
nd

in
g 

pr
op

os
al

 th
ro

ug
h 

W
C

C
 w

ith
 d

ra
ft 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
pl

an
. 

    

Page 61



   
   

   
  P

la
yi

n
g

 P
it

ch
es

 
 

• 
D

el
iv

er
y 

P
la

n
: 

C
om

pl
et

e 
th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
pl

an
 t

o 
su

pp
or

t 
th

e 
P

la
yi

ng
 P

itc
h 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 f
un

di
ng

 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
. 

• 
C

om
pl

et
e 

dr
af

t s
tr

at
eg

y,
 c

on
su

lt 
w

ith
 k

ey
 s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s,

 a
nd

 m
ee

t w
ith

 F
A

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s.

 
• 

P
it

ch
 S

iz
es

: 
R

ev
ie

w
 p

itc
h 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 a
ga

in
st

 d
em

an
ds

 f
or

 t
he

 2
01

3/
14

 s
ea

so
n 

re
la

te
d 

to
 n

ew
 F

A
 p

itc
h 

si
ze

 g
ui

de
lin

es
. 

C
on

su
lt 

w
ith

 
cl

ub
s 

an
d 

le
ag

ue
s 

an
d 

ga
in

 s
up

po
rt

 fr
om

 th
e 

go
ve

rn
in

g 
bo

dy
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 th
e 

de
si

re
d 

ou
tc

om
es

. 
• 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

: 
 W

or
k 

w
ith

 le
ag

ue
s 

/ 
cl

ub
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
a 

su
ita

bl
e 

po
st

/p
re

-s
ea

so
n 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

is
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t 
on

 p
itc

he
s.

 
T

hi
s 

sh
ou

ld
 im

pr
ov

e 
ca

rr
yi

ng
 c

ap
ac

ity
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
he

lp
in

g 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

lo
ng

 te
rm

 s
us

ta
in

ab
ili

ty
 o

f t
he

 p
itc

h 
st

oc
k.

 
• 

F
u

n
d

in
g

: 
 I

nv
es

tig
at

e 
ex

te
rn

al
 f

un
di

ng
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

to
 in

ve
st

 in
to

 c
ha

ng
in

g 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

 p
itc

h 
dr

ai
na

ge
 a

nd
 a

nc
ill

ar
y 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s.
 T

he
se

 
w

ill
 s

up
po

rt
 th

e 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 fr

om
 th

e 
P

la
yi

ng
 P

itc
h 

de
liv

er
y 

pl
an

. 
• 

P
ar

ti
ci

p
at

io
n

: 
 W

or
k 

w
ith

 F
A

 (
N

G
B

) 
an

d 
S

po
rt

s 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

te
am

 to
 lo

ok
 a

t 
in

tr
od

uc
in

g 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
io

n 
an

d 
re

du
ce

 d
ro

p 
of

f r
at

es
. T

he
se

 p
ro

gr
am

m
es

 s
ho

ul
d 

pr
ov

id
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

ex
it 

an
d 

en
tr

y 
ro

ut
es

 in
to

 a
nd

 o
ut

 o
f e

xi
st

in
g 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

. 
 

   
   

  C
o

nt
ra

ct
s 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

  -
 G

o
lf

 C
o

u
rs

e 
/ B

M
X

 
 

• 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
: 

D
ev

el
op

 a
 r

ob
us

t 
co

nt
ra

ct
s 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
sy

st
em

 t
o 

in
cl

ud
e 

m
ee

tin
gs

, 
K

P
Is

 a
nd

 c
or

re
ct

iv
e 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
s 

ag
re

ed
 b

y 
pa

rt
ne

rs
. 

• 
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t:
 S

up
po

rt
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

ne
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
pl

an
s 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 c

lu
b 

m
ar

k,
 im

pr
ov

e 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

io
n,

 c
lu

b 
m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
an

d 
en

ha
nc

e 
qu

al
ity

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 o

f p
ro

vi
si

on
. 

• 
L

an
d

sc
ap

e 
P

la
n

: 
R

ev
ie

w
 

ex
is

tin
g 

go
lf 

co
ur

se
 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

ad
 

ho
c 

w
or

ks
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 
an

d 
co

ur
se

 
en

ha
nc

em
en

ts
. 

 
P

ar
ks

 a
n

d
 G

re
en

 S
p

ac
es

 
 

T
he

 m
aj

or
ity

 o
f t

he
 P

ar
ks

 a
nd

 G
re

en
 S

pa
ce

s 
m

ai
n 

ar
ea

s 
of

 fo
cu

s 
fe

at
ur

es
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

re
po

rt
 to

 th
e 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l S
er

vi
ce

s 
po

rt
fo

lio
.  

In
 

ad
di

tio
n 

th
e 

te
am

 w
ill

 fo
cu

s 
on

: 
 

• 
P

h
ys

ic
al

 A
ct

iv
it

y:
 F

ur
th

er
 d

ev
el

op
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r 

bo
th

 fo
rm

al
 a

nd
 in

fo
rm

al
 r

ec
re

at
io

n 
w

ith
in

 p
ar

ks
 a

nd
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

es
, w

ith
 a

 fo
cu

s 
on

 ‘P
ar

k 
R

un
’, 

O
rie

nt
ee

rin
g 

an
d 

P
la

y/
S

po
rt

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s.
 

  

Page 62



• 
P

la
y 

O
p

p
o

rt
u

ni
ti

es
:  

P
ro

gr
es

s 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

of
 p

la
y 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

, s
ee

ki
ng

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r 
in

ve
st

m
en

t t
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f l
oc

al
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

 
 

B
u

si
n

es
s 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

 
� 

S
p

o
n

so
rs

h
ip

: 
W

ith
 a

 b
ud

ge
t t

ar
ge

t s
et

 fo
r 

Le
is

ur
e 

an
d 

C
ul

tu
ra

l s
er

vi
ce

s 
w

e 
ar

e 
lo

ok
in

g 
to

 g
ai

n 
sp

on
so

rs
hi

p 
fo

r 
se

ve
n 

ro
un

da
bo

ut
s 

w
hi

ch
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
pp

ro
ve

d.
 ‘

A
dv

er
tis

e 
H

er
e’

 s
ig

ns
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

st
al

le
d 

an
d 

co
m

pa
ni

es
 w

ho
 h

av
e 

sh
ow

n 
in

te
re

st
 w

ill
 b

e 
ap

pr
oa

ch
ed

. 
O

nc
e 

pr
ic

es
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
gr

ee
d 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 w
ill

 r
ol

l t
he

 S
po

ns
or

sh
ip

 s
ch

em
e 

ou
t 

in
 N

ov
em

be
r/

D
ec

em
be

r.
 A

 w
eb

pa
ge

 li
nk

ed
 t

o 
Le

is
ur

e 
an

d 
C

ul
tu

ra
l 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
or

 B
us

in
es

s 
pa

ge
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

pr
od

uc
ed

 t
o 

he
lp

 w
ith

 t
he

 m
ar

ke
tin

g 
an

d 
pr

om
ot

io
n.

 O
ffi

ce
rs

 w
ill

 m
on

ito
r 

th
e 

su
cc

es
s 

an
d 

pr
og

re
ss

 o
f t

he
 s

ch
em

e 
an

d 
if 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
 e

xp
an

d 
w

ith
 a

no
th

er
 s

el
ec

tio
n 

of
 r

ou
nd

ab
ou

ts
 in

 th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

.  
 

 � 
W

eb
si

te
: 

 N
ow

 w
ith

 r
eg

ul
ar

 m
ee

tin
gs

 in
 p

la
ce

 w
e 

ho
pe

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 a

nd
 e

nh
an

ce
 th

e 
w

eb
si

te
 s

til
l f

ur
th

er
.  

T
he

 s
er

vi
ce

 w
eb

 g
ro

up
 w

ill
 

id
en

tif
y 

be
st

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
an

d 
w

or
k 

on
 c

on
tin

uo
us

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
si

te
 d

oe
s 

no
t f

al
l b

ac
k 

in
to

 d
ec

lin
e.

  
T

hi
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

do
ne

 b
y 

in
te

rn
al

 s
er

vi
ce

 p
ag

e 
re

vi
ew

s 
an

d 
cr

iti
qu

es
. A

s 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 g
ro

up
 w

e 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

re
vi

ew
 s

oc
ia

l m
ed

ia
, s

uc
h 

as
 T

w
itt

er
 a

nd
 F

ac
eb

oo
k 

an
d 

w
or

k 
w

ith
 th

e 
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 T

ea
m

 to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

ou
r 

se
rv

ic
es

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 fu

tu
re

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 a

nd
 e

ve
nt

s.
  

 � 
R

o
o

m
 B

o
o

ki
n

g
s 

an
d

 C
ar

et
ak

in
g

 P
ro

vi
si

o
n:

  
S

er
vi

ce
 r

ev
ie

w
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

ca
rr

ie
d 

ou
t 

on
 R

oo
m

 B
oo

ki
ng

s 
an

d 
C

ar
et

ak
in

g 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

as
 

m
en

tio
ne

d 
ab

ov
e 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
se

rv
ic

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 p

ot
en

tia
l a

dd
iti

on
al

 in
co

m
e.

  
P

ro
m

ot
in

g 
th

e 
C

iv
ic

 S
ui

te
 a

s 
an

 e
xt

er
na

l v
en

ue
 

fo
r 

hi
re

 is
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 p
ro

m
ot

io
na

l p
la

ns
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 w

ill
 b

e 
lo

ok
in

g 
at

. 
 

� 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 R

ep
o

rt
s:

  L
&

C
S

 a
re

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 lo

ok
in

g 
in

to
 p

ot
en

tia
l p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 u

se
 a

t a
 s

er
vi

ce
 le

ve
l i

n 
ad

di
tio

n 
to

 
th

os
e 

al
re

ad
y 

re
po

rt
ed

 c
or

po
ra

te
ly

. T
he

se
 in

di
ca

to
rs

 w
ill

 a
ss

is
t t

he
 H

ea
d 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
 w

ith
 r

ob
us

t s
er

vi
ce

 r
ep

or
ts

 a
nd

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n.

   
 

� 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
S

ys
te

m
s:

  T
he

 B
us

in
es

s 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t t

ea
m

 is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 w
or

ki
ng

 o
n 

th
e 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 a
 L

&
C

S
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
co

nt
ra

ct
 s

ys
te

m
 w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 t

he
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t 

te
am

 t
o 

de
liv

er
 t

hi
s.

 T
he

se
 w

ill
 c

on
ta

in
 t

he
 i

m
po

rt
an

t 
de

ta
ils

 o
f 

ou
r 

bu
si

ne
ss

 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

ps
 w

ith
 p

ar
tn

er
s,

 s
up

pl
ie

rs
, 

cu
st

om
er

s,
 a

nd
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s,
 s

uc
h 

as
 p

ric
es

, 
se

rv
ic

e 
le

ve
ls

, 
te

rm
s 

an
d 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
an

d 
su

pp
lie

r 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

ps
. 

A
 c

on
tr

ac
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

sy
st

em
 w

ill
 a

ls
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

th
e 

fr
am

ew
or

k 
fo

r 
ho

w
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 p
eo

pl
e 

an
d 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 
an

d 
pr

ov
id

e 
th

e 
ru

le
s 

an
d 

gu
id

el
in

es
 f

or
 o

bl
ig

at
io

ns
 s

o 
th

at
 e

ve
ry

on
e 

is
 c

le
ar

 o
f 

w
ha

t 
is

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
of

 t
he

m
 f

ro
m

 t
he

 s
ta

rt
. 

W
he

n 
m

an
ag

ed
 p

ro
pe

rly
, c

on
tr

ac
ts

 w
ill

 h
el

p 
to

 r
ed

uc
e 

co
st

s 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

e 
pr

of
ita

bi
lit

y,
 a

s 
w

el
l, 

of
 c

ou
rs

e,
 a

s 
m

iti
ga

tin
g 

ris
k.

   
 

Page 63



� 
C

h
ri

st
m

as
 L

ig
h

ts
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t 

–T
he

 C
hr

is
tm

as
 L

ig
ht

s 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t i
n 

R
ed

di
tc

h 
is

 in
 it

s 
fin

al
 y

ea
r,

 th
er

ef
or

e 
a 

re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 n

ew
 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
n 

ne
ed

s 
to

 b
e 

w
rit

te
n 

in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 n

ew
 s

er
vi

ce
 b

ud
ge

ts
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

co
m

in
g 

ye
ar

s.
  O

ffi
ce

rs
 h

av
e 

be
en

 w
or

ki
ng

 to
 s

et
 u

p 
th

e 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 in
 a

dv
an

ce
 s

o 
C

hr
is

tm
as

 li
gh

ts
 c

an
 b

e 
m

or
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

ov
er

 th
e 

ne
xt

 2
/3

 y
ea

rs
. 

 
   

 
    

 

Page 64



Actions requested by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
 

Date Action 
Requested 

Action to be Taken Response 

 
11th 
September 
2012 

 
1 

 
 

 
Officers were asked to provide 
further clarification regarding 
arrangements for PAT testing PCs 
issued to Councillors as well as 
details about the process for 
monitoring the implementation of 
PAT testing. 
 

 
The information remains to be 
provided. 
 
Lead Officer, Head of Finance 
and Resources, estimated 
completion date, unspecified. 
 
TO BE COMPLETED. 
 

 
9th October 
2012 
 

2 
 
 
 
 

 
Officers were asked to clarify the 
number of businesses that were 
considering introducing 
apprenticeship positions in 
Redditch where these 
opportunities had not previously 
been available. 

 
The information remains to be 
provided.   
 
Lead Officer, North 
Worcestershire Regeneration 
Manager, estimated completion 
date not specified. 
 
TO BE COMPLETED. 
 

 
6th November 
2012 
 

3 
 
 

 
The Committee requested further 
information about the 
reassurances, if any, provided to 
customers making complaints. 
 

 
Officers circulated a response to 
this query by email on 14th 
November 2012. 
 
COMPLETED. 
 

 
6th November 
2012 
 
 

4 
 
 
 

 
The Committee requested the 
following information about 
allotments: 
 
a) the number of allotments 

situated in the town; 
 
b) the number of allotments that 

are not currently let in the town, 
including comparison figures 
for a number of preceding 
years; and 

 
c) a breakdown of how vacant 

allotments are distributed 
across the town. 

 
The information remains to be 
provided. 
 
Lead Officer, Head of 
Environmental Services, 
estimated completion date, not 
specified. 
 
TO BE COMPLETED. 
 

Agenda Item 8Page 65



  

 
6th November 
2012 
 
 

5 
 
 

 
Members requested further 
information about the 100% project 
for recycling collection services. 

 
An update has been circulated 
with the minutes from this 
meeting. 
 
COMPLETED. 

 

Page 66



 
 

 

 

Executive 
Committee 

  

 

20th November 2012 
 

 

 Chair 
 

 

MINUTES Present: 
  

Councillor Bill Hartnett (Chair), Councillor Greg Chance (Vice-Chair) and 
Councillors Rebecca Blake, Michael Braley, Phil Mould, Mark Shurmer, 
Luke Stephens and Debbie Taylor 
 

 Officers: 
 

 K Dicks, C Flanagan, S Jones, J Pickering and M Stanley 
 

 Committee Services Officer: 
 

 I Westmore 
 

 
 

92. APOLOGIES  
 
Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Councillor Carole 
Gandy. 
 

93. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

94. LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
The Leader advised that the following item of business, scheduled 
on the Executive Work Programme to be dealt with at this meeting, 
had been rescheduled to a later meeting of the Committee: 
 

• Concessionary Rents Policy. 
 

95. MINUTES  
 
It was noted that answers to the questions requested in respect of 
the Concessionary Fares Item (Minute 84) had now been circulated 
to members of the Committee. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 

Agenda Item 9Page 67



   

ExecutiveExecutiveExecutiveExecutive    
Committee 

 
 

20th November 2012 

 
the minutes of the meeting of the Executive Committee held on 
16th October 2012 be confirmed as a correct record and signed 
by the Chair. 
 

96. SICKNESS ABSENCE POLICY AND DISCIPLINARY POLICY - 
REVIEW  
 
The Committee received a report which proposed revisions to the 
Sickness Absence Policy and the Disciplinary Policy. Members’ 
attention was also drawn to the report and recommendations from 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee in this regard. The Sickness 
Absence Policy was designed to support staff and be effective as a 
management tool. One aspect of the Policy to be reviewed was the 
process for the management of long-term sickness absence and 
the Disciplinary Policy had been amended as a consequence to 
ensure the two Policies were consistent with each other. Following 
some consideration it was proposed that Members retain their 
involvement in the Appeals process that was open to Officers who 
were aggrieved at a decision taken under either of these Policies 
that they be dismissed.  
 
The Committee welcomed and supported the report and the 
proposed Policies. The Committee also thanked the Sickness 
Policy Pre-Scrutiny Short Sharp Review Group for its report. 
Members were content to support the recommendations made by 
that Group in the report which had been submitted to the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee on 6th November as detailed below.  
  
In response to an enquiry from Members, it was reported that the 
concept of ‘duvet days’, or ‘network days’ which were apparently 
available in some employment sectors, was known to Officers, but 
Officers were not convinced that any additional time off for staff was 
warranted, given the relatively generous leave entitlement already 
offered. Members were keen that the point made at Paragraph 3.8 
g) in the report be extended to cover conditions that were as 
similarly life-threatening as cancer. 
 
RECOMMENDED that 
 
1) the revisions to the Sickness Absence Policy and 

Disciplinary Policy attached to the report at Appendix 1 
and 2, and detailed at 3.7 and 3.9 be approved and 
adopted; 

 
2) the additional procedural guidance proposed for 

inclusion in the Sickness Absence Policy as detailed in 
the report at 3.8 be noted, subject to the extension of the 
description in Paragraph 3.8 g) to include conditions 
“such as” cancer; 

 

Page 68



   

ExecutiveExecutiveExecutiveExecutive    
Committee 

 
 

20th November 2012 

 
3) authority be delegated to the Head of Legal & 

Democratic Services to make the necessary changes to 
the scheme of delegations required to implement the 
proposed changes; and 

 
RESOLVED that 
 
4) the Council’s Sickness Absence Policy be updated and 

reduced in length, in order to clarify the structure and 
process for managing both short-term and long-term 
sickness absences;   

 
5) the terminology used in the policy be sensitive to the 

needs of staff experiencing sickness;   
 
6) an A5 laminated guide to the Council’s Sickness 

Absence Policy be provided for the use of managers and 
staff;   

 
7) all changes to the Council’s Sickness Absence Policy be 

communicated to managers and staff;   
 
8) the Sickness Absence Policy be included in the 

induction process for new staff and managers employed 
by the Council;   

 
9) staff and managers receive regular refresher training;   
 
10) the Sickness Absence Policy be applied consistently to 

staff across all service areas, and managers be 
encouraged, recognising individual circumstances and 
different working environments to apply the policy 
appropriately;   

 
11) the occupational health service available to staff 

experiencing sickness be reviewed;  and 
 
12) communication form an integral part of the 

transformation process to ensure that staff understand 
the reasons for changes made to services as part of the 
transformation process and how transformation may 
impact on them. 

 
97. ACCESS TO INFORMATION RULES - REVIEW  

 
A report was considered which detailed a number of changes that 
had recently come about as a result of Regulations issued under 
the Localism Act 2011. The more obvious changes were with 
respect to the Council’s obligations in connection with what had 

Page 69



   

ExecutiveExecutiveExecutiveExecutive    
Committee 

 
 

20th November 2012 

 
formerly been called the Forward Plan of Key Decisions to be taken 
by the Executive Committee. 
 
Officers proposed that measures be adopted in such a way that the 
change to current practices would not be too significant whilst still 
doing enough to comply with the Regulations. Members generally 
supported the approach that was being taken by Officers and were 
content that there were not reported to be any direct financial 
implications arising from the proposals. 
 
RECOMMENDED that  
 
the revised Access to Information Rules be approved for 
inclusion in the Council’s constitution. 
 

98. QUARTERLY CUSTOMER SERVICE MONITORING - QUARTER 
2 - JULY TO NOVEMBER 2012  
 
The Committee received a report that provided Members with 
details of customer feedback data for the second quarter of 
2012/13. 
 
The Committee was very pleased with the report, noting that the 
numbers of both compliments and complaints had increased 
compared to both the same quarter the previous year and the 
previous quarter this current year. Members were very much of the 
opinion that complaints were a useful tool for driving improvements 
and noted the positive measures that had taken place in Housing 
Repairs and Maintenance as a result of Transformation. 
 
In response to a Member query as to the proportion of payments 
detailed in the table on page 68 of the report which had been 
received electronically, Officers undertook to report back to the 
Committee in due course with that information. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the update for the period 1st July – 30th September be noted. 
 

99. QUARTERLY BUDGET MONITORING - QUARTER 2 - JULY TO 
SEPTEMBER 2012  
 
The Committee received the report on the previous quarter’s 
Budget position. Officers highlighted the fact that this was the first 
occasion on which Members were being presented with a projected 
year-end position. Current indications were that there was expected 
to be a shortfall of £48,000 by the end of the current year. Heads of 
Service were tasked with identifying means of addressing this 

Page 70



   

ExecutiveExecutiveExecutiveExecutive    
Committee 

 
 

20th November 2012 

 
shortfall prior to the year-end. Capital spending was reported to be 
in line with projections. 
 
Members were updated on the spend on the Disabled Facilities 
Grants. It was noted that there was going to be a significant 
underspend on this budget although this did not reflect a fall-off in 
the numbers of applications for Grants but rather a drop in the value 
of the Grants being sought. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the current financial position on Revenue and Capital be noted, 
as detailed in the report. 
 

100. QUARTERLY MONITORING - WRITE OFF OF DEBTS - 
QUARTER 2 - JULY TO SEPTEMBER 2012  
 
Members considered the quarterly report detailing the action taken 
in relation to the write off of debts and the collection of outstanding 
debt. 
 
The Committee was heartened to see that the level of debt from 
previous years was falling consistently quarter by quarter. There 
was some concern that the introduction of Universal Credits would 
have an adverse impact on these figures and Members questioned 
whether there was a contingency in place. Officers confirmed that 
no such contingency existed at the present time but that Members 
would be required to make a judgement on the level of bad debt 
provision in due course. In addition, a report was due to be 
submitted to the January meeting outlining plans for providing crisis 
loans to local residents. 
 
It was stated that the Citizen’s Advice Bureau had not yet made any 
approaches to the Council for additional grant funding for an 
increased workload. It was hoped that Council Officers might be 
equipped with the necessary skills to pick up some of the expected 
burden. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the contents of the report be noted. 
 

101. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 
The Committee received the minutes of the meeting of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 9th October 2012. It was 
noted that there were two outstanding recommendations. 
 

Page 71



   

ExecutiveExecutiveExecutiveExecutive    
Committee 

 
 

20th November 2012 

 
The Chair of the Economic Advisory Panel undertook to ensure that 
meetings of this body be recommenced after a short break as 
proposed by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. In this respect 
it was noted that the Manager of the shared Economic 
Development team had been head-hunted by another local 
authority and the three Councils that made up the shared service 
were currently in the process of appointing a successor. 
 
It was suggested that the recommendation in respect of the Choose 
How You Move project be strengthened to reflect concern that 
money should be targeted to the most appropriate activities. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
1) Redditch Borough Council Officers ensure that the most 

effective use be made of Choose How You Move monies 
in Redditch; and 

 
2) the Economic Advisory Panel meet more frequently, the 

scope of the Panel be expanded and more active 
participation of elected Members at meetings of the 
Panel be promoted. 

 
102. SHARED SERVICES BOARD  

 
The Committee received the Minutes arising from the most recent 
of the Shared Services Board. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the minutes of the meeting of the Shared Services Board held 
on 11th October 2012 be noted. 
 

103. WORCESTERSHIRE SHARED SERVICES JOINT COMMITTEE  
 
The Committee received the Minutes arising from the most recent 
of the Worcestershire Shared Services Joint Committee. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the minutes of the meeting of the Worcestershire Shared 
Services Joint Committee held on 27th September 2012 be 
noted. 
 

104. MINUTES / REFERRALS - OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE, EXECUTIVE PANELS ETC.  
 
There were no minutes or referrals to consider under this item. 
 

Page 72



   

ExecutiveExecutiveExecutiveExecutive    
Committee 

 
 

20th November 2012 

 
105. ADVISORY PANELS - UPDATE REPORT  

 
The Committee received the most recent report on the activity of 
the Council’s Advisory panels and similar bodies. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the report be noted. 
 

106. ACTION MONITORING  
 
The Committee received the latest Action Monitoring report. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the report be noted. 
 
 

 
 

 Chair 
 

The Meeting commenced at 7.00 pm 
and closed at 8.12 pm 

Page 73



Page 74



1 

 
 

 

E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 L
E

A
D

E
R

’S
 

 

W
O

R
K

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
 

 

1 
D

ec
em

b
er

 2
01

2 
to

 3
1s

t 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

3 
 

(p
ub

lis
he

d 
as

 a
t 2

0t
h 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

12
) 

 
T

hi
s 

P
la

n 
gi

ve
s 

de
ta

ils
 o

f i
te

m
s 

on
 w

hi
ch

 k
ey

 d
ec

is
io

ns
 a

re
 li

ke
ly

 to
 b

e 
ta

ke
n 

 
in

 th
e 

co
m

in
g 

fo
ur

 m
on

th
s 

by
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

. 
 (N

B
:  

T
he

re
 m

ay
 b

e 
oc

ca
si

on
s 

w
he

n 
th

e 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 m

ay
 m

ak
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 to
 C

ou
nc

il 
fo

r 
a 

fin
al

 d
ec

is
io

n.
  e

.g
. t

o 
ap

pr
ov

e 
a 

ne
w

 
po

lic
y 

or
 v

ar
ia

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

ud
ge

t.)
 

W
hi

ls
t t

he
 m

aj
or

ity
 o

f t
he

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

’s
 b

us
in

es
s 

at
 th

e 
m

ee
tin

gs
 li

st
ed

 in
 th

is
 W

or
k 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

op
en

 to
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 a
nd

 m
ed

ia
 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 to
 a

tte
nd

, t
he

re
 w

ill
 in

ev
ita

bl
y 

be
 s

om
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

 to
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 th
at

 c
on

ta
in

s 
co

nf
id

en
tia

l, 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
ly

 s
en

si
tiv

e 
or

 p
er

so
na

l 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n.
  T

hi
s 

is
 c

al
le

d 
ex

em
pt

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n.

  M
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 p

ub
lic

 a
nd

 m
ed

ia
 m

ay
 b

e 
as

ke
d 

to
 le

av
e 

th
e 

m
ee

tin
g 

w
he

n 
su

ch
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
is

 
di

sc
us

se
d.

 
If 

an
 it

em
 is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 c
on

ta
in

 e
xe

m
pt

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

w
e 

sh
ow

 th
is

 o
n 

th
e 

W
or

k 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e.
  Y

ou
 c

an
 m

ak
e 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tio

ns
 

to
 u

s 
if 

yo
u 

co
ns

id
er

 a
n 

ite
m

 o
r 

an
y 

of
 th

e 
do

cu
m

en
ts

 li
st

ed
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 o
pe

n 
to

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
. 

 Page 75



 

2 

 T
hi

s 
W

or
k 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

gi
ve

s 
de

ta
ils

 o
f i

te
m

s 
on

 w
hi

ch
 k

ey
 d

ec
is

io
ns

 a
re

 li
ke

ly
 to

 b
e 

ta
ke

n 
by

 th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

 C
ou

nc
il’

s 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
, o

r 
fu

ll 
C

ou
nc

il,
 in

 th
e 

co
m

in
g 

fo
ur

 m
on

th
s.

  
 “K

ey
 D

ec
is

io
n

s”
 a

re
 o

n
es

 w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 li
ke

ly
 t

o
: 

  
 (i

) 
re

su
lt

 in
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l i

n
cu

rr
in

g
 e

xp
en

d
it

u
re

, f
o

re
g

o
in

g
 in

co
m

e 
o

r 
th

e 
m

ak
in

g
 o

f 
sa

vi
n

g
s 

in
 e

xc
es

s 
o

f 
£5

0,
00

0 
o

r 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
si

g
n

if
ic

an
t 

h
av

in
g

 r
eg

ar
d

 t
o

 t
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l’s
 b

u
d

g
et

 f
o

r 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
o

r 
fu

n
ct

io
n

 t
o

 w
h

ic
h

 t
h

e 
d

ec
is

io
n

 r
el

at
es

; 
o

r 
(i

i)
 

b
e 

si
g

n
if

ic
an

t 
in

 t
er

m
s 

o
f 

it
s 

ef
fe

ct
 o

n
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s 

liv
in

g
 o

r 
w

o
rk

in
g

 in
 t

h
e 

ar
ea

 c
o

m
p

ri
si

n
g

 t
w

o
 o

r 
m

o
re

 w
ar

d
s 

in
 t

h
e 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

; 
(i

ii)
 

in
vo

lv
e 

an
y 

p
ro

p
o

sa
l t

o
 c

ea
se

 t
o

 p
ro

vi
d

e 
a 

C
o

u
n

ci
l s

er
vi

ce
 (

o
th

er
 t

h
an

 a
 t

em
p

o
ra

ry
 c

es
sa

ti
o

n
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

e 
o

f 
n

o
t 

m
o

re
 t

h
an

 
6 

m
o

n
th

s)
. 

 T
he

 W
or

k 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

fr
ee

 o
f c

ha
rg

e 
at

 th
e 

T
ow

n 
H

al
l, 

W
al

te
r 

S
tr

an
z 

S
qu

ar
e,

 R
ed

di
tc

h,
 B

98
 8

A
H

 fr
om

 9
am

 to
 5

pm
 

M
on

da
ys

 to
 F

rid
ay

s;
 o

r 
on

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
w

eb
si

te
 (

w
w

w
.r

ed
di

tc
hb

c.
go

v.
uk

).
 

If 
yo

u 
w

is
h 

to
 m

ak
e 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tio

ns
 o

n 
th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 d

ec
is

io
n 

yo
u 

ar
e 

en
co

ur
ag

ed
 to

 g
et

 in
 to

uc
h 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
le

va
nt

 r
ep

or
t a

ut
ho

r 
as

 s
oo

n 
as

 
po

ss
ib

le
 b

ef
or

e 
th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 d

at
e 

of
 th

e 
de

ci
si

on
.  

C
on

ta
ct

 d
et

ai
ls

 a
re

 p
ro

vi
de

d.
  A

lte
rn

at
iv

el
y 

yo
u 

m
ay

 w
rit

e 
to

 th
e 

H
ea

d 
of

 L
eg

al
, E

qu
al

iti
es

 a
nd

 
D

em
oc

ra
tic

 S
er

vi
ce

s,
 T

he
 T

ow
n 

H
al

l, 
W

al
te

r 
S

tr
an

z 
S

qu
ar

e,
 R

ed
di

tc
h,

 B
98

 8
A

H
 o

r 
e-

m
ai

l: 
de

m
oc

ra
tic

@
br

om
sg

ro
ve

an
dr

ed
di

tc
h.

go
v.

uk
 

T
he

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

’s
 m

ee
tin

gs
 a

re
 n

or
m

al
ly

 h
el

d 
ev

er
y 

fo
ur

 w
ee

ks
 a

t 7
pm

 o
n 

T
ue

sd
ay

 e
ve

ni
ng

s 
at

 th
e 

T
ow

n 
H

al
l. 

 T
he

y 
ar

e 
op

en
 to

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
, e

xc
ep

t w
he

n 
co

nf
id

en
tia

l i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
is

 b
ei

ng
 d

is
cu

ss
ed

.  
If 

yo
u 

w
is

h 
to

 a
tte

nd
 fo

r 
a 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 m

at
te

r,
 it

 is
 a

dv
is

ab
le

 to
 c

he
ck

 w
ith

 th
e 

D
em

oc
ra

tic
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

T
ea

m
 o

n 
(0

15
27

) 
64

25
2,

 e
xt

: 3
26

9 
to

 m
ak

e 
su

re
 it

 is
 g

oi
ng

 a
he

ad
 a

s 
pl

an
ne

d.
  I

f y
ou

 h
av

e 
an

y 
ot

he
r 

qu
er

ie
s,

 D
em

oc
ra

tic
 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
O

ffi
ce

rs
 w

ill
 b

e 
ha

pp
y 

to
 a

dv
is

e 
yo

u.
 

T
he

 fu
ll 

C
ou

nc
il 

m
ee

ts
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
C

al
en

da
r 

of
 M

ee
tin

gs
.  

M
ee

tin
gs

 c
om

m
en

ce
 a

t 7
.0

0p
m

. 
 E

X
E

C
U

T
IV

E
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 M

E
M

B
E

R
S

H
IP

 
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 B
ill

 H
ar

tn
et

t 
Le

ad
er

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
P

or
tfo

lio
 H

ol
de

r 
fo

r 
C

om
m

un
ity

 L
ea

de
rs

hi
p 

&
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 G

 C
ha

nc
e 

D
ep

ut
y 

Le
ad

er
 a

nd
 P

or
tfo

lio
 H

ol
de

r 
fo

r 
P

la
nn

in
g,

 R
eg

en
er

at
io

n,
 E

co
no

m
ic

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t, 
P

ub
lic

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
 

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 P

hi
l M

ou
ld

 
P

or
tfo

lio
 H

ol
de

r 
fo

r 
C

or
po

ra
te

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 R

eb
ec

ca
 B

la
ke

 
P

or
tfo

lio
 H

ol
de

r 
fo

r 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
af

et
y 

&
 R

eg
ul

at
or

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 M

ar
k 

S
hu

rm
er

 
P

or
tfo

lio
 H

ol
de

r 
fo

r 
H

ou
si

ng
 

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 D

eb
bi

e 
T

ay
lo

r 
P

or
tfo

lio
 H

ol
de

r 
fo

r 
Lo

ca
l E

nv
iro

nm
en

t &
 H

ea
lth

 
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 L
uk

e 
S

te
ph

en
s 

P
or

tfo
lio

 H
ol

de
r 

fo
r 

Le
is

ur
e 

&
 T

ou
ris

m
 

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 M

ic
ha

el
 B

ra
le

y 
 

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 C

ar
ol

e 
G

an
dy

 
 

 

Page 76



3 

D
ec

is
io

n
 

D
ec

is
io

n
 T

ak
er

 in
cl

u
d

in
g

 
D

et
ai

ls
 o

f 
E

xe
m

p
t 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 (
if

 a
n

y)
 

D
at

e 
o

f 
D

ec
is

io
n

 
D

o
cu

m
en

ts
 s

u
b

m
it

te
d

 t
o

 
D

ec
is

io
n

 M
ak

er
 / 

B
ac

kg
ro

u
n

d
 

P
ap

er
s 

L
is

t 

C
o

n
ta

ct
 f

o
r 

C
o

m
m

en
ts

 

C
on

ce
ss

io
na

ry
 R

en
ts

 P
ol

ic
y 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
18

 D
ec

em
be

r 
20

12
 

R
ep

or
t o

f t
he

 H
ea

d 
of

 F
in

an
ce

 
an

d 
R

es
ou

rc
es

 
T

er
es

a 
K

ris
tu

na
s,

 H
ea

d 
of

 
F

in
an

ce
 a

nd
 R

es
ou

rc
es

, 
01

52
7 

64
25

2 
ex

t 3
29

5 

T
ow

n 
C

en
tr

e 
La

nd
sc

ap
e 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 (
in

cl
ud

in
g 

C
hu

rc
h 

G
re

en
) 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
18

 D
ec

em
be

r 
20

12
 

R
ep

or
t o

f t
he

 H
ea

d 
of

 P
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

Ly
nd

se
y 

H
ad

le
y,

 P
la

nn
in

g 
O

ffi
ce

r,
 0

15
27

 6
42

52
 e

xt
 3

40
1 

C
ar

l W
al

ke
r,

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

M
an

ag
er

, 
01

52
7 

64
25

2 
ex

t 3
42

1 

T
en

an
cy

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d 
P

ol
ic

y 
20

12
-2

01
4 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

to
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

to
 C

ou
nc

il 

18
 D

ec
em

be
r 

20
12

 
 

7 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

13
 

R
ep

or
t o

f t
he

 D
ep

ut
y 

C
hi

ef
 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
an

d 
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 (
Le

is
ur

e,
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l 

&
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
er

vi
ce

s 

M
at

th
ew

 B
ou

gh
, H

ou
si

ng
 P

ol
ic

y 
M

an
ag

er
, 

01
52

7 
64

25
2 

ex
t 3

12
0 

C
ou

nc
il 

T
ax

 S
up

po
rt

 
S

ch
em

e 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 

 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

n 
to

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
to

 C
ou

nc
il 

18
 D

ec
em

be
r 

20
12

 
 

7 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

13
 

R
ep

or
t o

f t
he

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 

(F
in

an
ce

 a
nd

 R
es

ou
rc

es
) 

– 
S

15
1 

O
ffi

ce
r 

Ja
yn

e 
P

ic
ke

rin
g,

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 (

F
in

an
ce

 a
nd

 
R

es
ou

rc
es

) 
– 

S
15

1 
O

ffi
ce

r 

01
52

7 
88

12
07

 

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 S

ic
kn

es
s 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
– 

Q
ua

rt
er

 2
 –

 
Ju

ly
 to

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
12

 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
18

 D
ec

em
be

r 
20

12
 

R
ep

or
t o

f t
he

 H
ea

d 
of

 F
in

an
ce

 
an

d 
R

es
ou

rc
es

 
M

ar
k 

S
ta

nl
ey

, A
ct

in
g 

H
um

an
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

M
an

ag
er

, 0
15

27
 8

81
67

3 

W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
 

H
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
18

 D
ec

em
be

r 
20

12
 

R
ep

or
t o

f t
he

 D
ep

ut
y 

C
hi

ef
 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
an

d 
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 (
Le

is
ur

e,
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l 

&
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
er

vi
ce

s 

M
at

th
ew

 B
ou

gh
, H

ou
si

ng
 P

ol
ic

y 
M

an
ag

er
, 

01
52

7 
64

25
2 

ex
t 3

12
0 

Page 77



 
 

4 

 
D

ec
is

io
n

 
D

ec
is

io
n

 T
ak

er
 in

cl
u

d
in

g
 

D
et

ai
ls

 o
f 

E
xe

m
p

t 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
 (

if
 a

n
y)

 

D
at

e 
o

f 
D

ec
is

io
n

 
D

o
cu

m
en

ts
 s

u
b

m
it

te
d

 t
o

 
D

ec
is

io
n

 M
ak

er
 / 

B
ac

kg
ro

u
n

d
 

P
ap

er
s 

L
is

t 

C
o

n
ta

ct
 f

o
r 

C
o

m
m

en
ts

 

S
tr

ee
t N

am
in

g 
an

d 
N

um
be

rin
g 

– 
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
P

ol
ic

y 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
18

 D
ec

em
be

r 
20

13
 

R
ep

or
t o

f t
he

 H
ea

d 
of

 
T

ra
ns

fo
rm

at
io

n 
C

el
es

te
 D

ix
on

 

G
eo

gr
ap

hi
ca

l I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
S

ys
te

m
s 

S
up

po
rt

 O
ffi

ce
r 

01
52

7 
88

16
84

 

M
ed

iu
m

 T
er

m
 F

in
an

ci
al

 
P

la
n 

20
13

/1
4 

– 
20

15
/1

6 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 

18
 D

ec
em

be
r 

20
12

 
R

ep
or

t o
f t

he
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 
(F

in
an

ce
 a

nd
 R

es
ou

rc
es

) 
– 

S
15

1 
O

ffi
ce

r 

Ja
yn

e 
P

ic
ke

rin
g,

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 (

F
in

an
ce

 a
nd

 
R

es
ou

rc
es

) 
– 

S
15

1 
O

ffi
ce

r 

01
52

7 
88

12
07

 

C
ou

nc
il 

T
ax

 B
as

e 
20

13
/1

4 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 

15
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

01
3 

R
ep

or
t o

f t
he

 H
ea

d 
of

 F
in

an
ce

 
an

d 
R

es
ou

rc
es

 
S

am
 M

or
ga

n,
 F

in
an

ci
al

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

M
an

ag
er

, 
01

52
7 

64
25

2 
ex

t 3
79

0 

M
ed

iu
m

 T
er

m
 F

in
an

ci
al

 
P

la
n 

20
13

/1
4 

– 
20

15
/1

6 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 

15
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

01
3 

R
ep

or
t o

f t
he

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 

(F
in

an
ce

 a
nd

 R
es

ou
rc

es
) 

– 
S

15
1 

O
ffi

ce
r 

Ja
yn

e 
P

ic
ke

rin
g,

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 (

F
in

an
ce

 a
nd

 
R

es
ou

rc
es

) 
– 

S
15

1 
O

ffi
ce

r 

01
52

7 
88

12
07

 

H
om

e 
E

ne
rg

y 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
ct

 (
H

E
C

A
) 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
15

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
01

3 
R

ep
or

t o
f t

he
 H

ea
d 

of
 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l S
er

vi
ce

s 
C

er
id

w
en

 J
oh

n,
 C

lim
at

e 
C

ha
ng

e 
M

an
ag

er
, 

01
52

7 
64

25
2 

ex
t 3

04
6 

F
ee

s 
an

d 
C

ha
rg

es
 2

01
3/

14
 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
12

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

13
 

R
ep

or
t o

f t
he

 H
ea

d 
of

 F
in

an
ce

 
an

d 
R

es
ou

rc
es

 
S

am
 M

or
ga

n,
 F

in
an

ci
al

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

M
an

ag
er

, 
01

52
7 

64
25

2 
ex

t 3
79

0 

Page 78



 
 

5 

 
D

ec
is

io
n

 
D

ec
is

io
n

 T
ak

er
 in

cl
u

d
in

g
 

D
et

ai
ls

 o
f 

E
xe

m
p

t 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
 (

if
 a

n
y)

 

D
at

e 
o

f 
D

ec
is

io
n

 
D

o
cu

m
en

ts
 s

u
b

m
it

te
d

 t
o

 
D

ec
is

io
n

 M
ak

er
 / 

B
ac

kg
ro

u
n

d
 

P
ap

er
s 

L
is

t 

C
o

n
ta

ct
 f

o
r 

C
o

m
m

en
ts

 

In
iti

al
 E

st
im

at
es

 2
01

3/
14

 –
 

20
15

/1
6 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

to
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

to
 C

ou
nc

il 

12
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
13

 
 

18
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
13

 

R
ep

or
t o

f t
he

 H
ea

d 
of

 F
in

an
ce

 
an

d 
R

es
ou

rc
es

 
S

am
 M

or
ga

n,
 F

in
an

ci
al

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

M
an

ag
er

, 
01

52
7 

64
25

2 
ex

t 3
79

0 

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 C

us
to

m
er

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
– 

Q
ua

rt
er

 3
 –

 O
ct

ob
er

 to
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

12
 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
12

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

13
 

R
ep

or
t o

f t
he

 H
ea

d 
of

 C
us

to
m

er
 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
A

m
an

da
 d

e 
W

ar
r,

 H
ea

d 
of

 
C

us
to

m
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s,
 

15
27

 8
81

24
1 

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 B

ud
ge

t M
on

ito
rin

g 
– 

Q
ua

rt
er

 3
 –

 O
ct

ob
er

 to
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

12
 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
12

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

13
 

R
ep

or
t o

f t
he

 H
ea

d 
of

 F
in

an
ce

 
an

d 
R

es
ou

rc
es

 
S

am
 M

or
ga

n,
 F

in
an

ci
al

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

M
an

ag
er

, 
01

52
7 

64
25

2 
ex

t 3
79

0 

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 M

on
ito

rin
g 

– 
W

rit
e 

O
ff 

of
 D

eb
ts

 –
 Q

ua
rt

er
 3

 –
 

O
ct

ob
er

 to
 D

ec
em

be
r 

20
12

 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
12

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

13
 

R
ep

or
t o

f t
he

 H
ea

d 
of

 F
in

an
ce

 
an

d 
R

es
ou

rc
es

 
T

er
es

a 
K

ris
tu

na
s,

 H
ea

d 
of

 
F

in
an

ce
 a

nd
 R

es
ou

rc
es

, 
01

52
7 

64
25

2 
ex

t 3
29

5 

A
ss

is
tiv

e 
T

ec
hn

ol
og

y 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 

W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
 T

el
ec

ar
e 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

  
 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

to
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

to
 C

ou
nc

il 
 

N
B

:  
P

os
si

bl
e 

ne
ed

 to
 

co
ns

id
er

 m
at

te
r 

in
 p

riv
at

e 
se

ss
io

n 
by

 v
irt

ue
 o

f 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

3 
of

 P
ar

t 1
 o

f 
S

ch
ed

ul
e 

12
A

 o
f t

he
 L

oc
al

 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t A
ct

 1
97

2 

12
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
13

 
 

25
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

3 

R
ep

or
t o

f t
he

 A
ct

in
g 

H
ea

d 
of

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
J 

W
ill

is
 

A
ct

in
g 

H
ea

d 
of

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
01

52
7 

53
41

49
 e

xt
 3

34
8 

Page 79



 
 

6 

 
D

ec
is

io
n

 
D

ec
is

io
n

 T
ak

er
 in

cl
u

d
in

g
 

D
et

ai
ls

 o
f 

E
xe

m
p

t 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
 (

if
 a

n
y)

 

D
at

e 
o

f 
D

ec
is

io
n

 
D

o
cu

m
en

ts
 s

u
b

m
it

te
d

 t
o

 
D

ec
is

io
n

 M
ak

er
 / 

B
ac

kg
ro

u
n

d
 

P
ap

er
s 

L
is

t 

C
o

n
ta

ct
 f

o
r 

C
o

m
m

en
ts

 

C
ou

nc
il 

T
ax

 S
et

tin
g 

20
13

/1
4 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

to
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

to
 C

ou
nc

il 
 

18
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
13

 
 

18
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
13

 

R
ep

or
t o

f t
he

 H
ea

d 
of

 F
in

an
ce

 
an

d 
R

es
ou

rc
es

 
S

am
 M

or
ga

n,
 F

in
an

ci
al

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

M
an

ag
er

, 
01

52
7 

64
25

2 
ex

t 3
79

0 

P
ly

m
ou

th
 R

oa
d 

C
em

et
er

y 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 

12
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

3 
R

ep
or

t o
f t

he
 H

ea
d 

of
 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l S
er

vi
ce

s 
S

ue
 H

or
ro

bi
n,

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

M
an

ag
er

 

01
52

7 
64

25
2 

ex
t 3

70
6 

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 S

ic
kn

es
s 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
– 

Q
ua

rt
er

 3
 –

 
O

ct
ob

er
 to

 D
ec

em
be

r 
20

13
 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
12

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
3 

R
ep

or
t o

f t
he

 H
ea

d 
of

 F
in

an
ce

 
an

d 
R

es
ou

rc
es

 
M

ar
k 

S
ta

nl
ey

, A
ct

in
g 

H
um

an
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 &

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
M

an
ag

er
, 0

15
27

 8
81

67
3 

H
ig

hw
ay

 Im
pa

ct
 &

 
A

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y 

M
od

el
lin

g 
R

ep
or

t –
 W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 
C

ou
nt

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
(H

al
cr

ow
) 

M
ay

 2
01

1 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
D

at
e 

to
 b

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

R
ep

or
t o

f t
he

 H
ea

d 
of

 P
la

nn
in

g 
&

 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

E
m

m
a 

B
ak

er
, A

ct
in

g 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
ns

 M
an

ag
er

, 
01

52
7 

64
25

2 
ex

t 3
37

6 

H
ou

si
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

ns
 P

ol
ic

y 
– 

R
ev

ie
w

 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 

D
at

e 
to

 b
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
R

ep
or

t o
f t

he
 H

ea
d 

of
 H

ou
si

ng
 

Li
z 

T
om

pk
in

, H
ea

d 
of

 H
ou

si
ng

, 
01

52
7 

64
25

2 
ex

t 3
30

4 

Page 80



  
 

Overview and  
Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

No Direct Ward Relevance 

11th December 2012 

 

Y:\Committee Services\Overview and Scrutiny Committee\2012\121211\O&S Work Programme – 121211 

 

WORK PROGRAMME 
 
 
(Report of the Chief Executive) 

Date of  
Meeting 

Subject Matter Officer(s) Responsible 
for report 

 
ALL MEETINGS 

 
REGULAR ITEMS 

 
(CHIEF EXECUTIVE) 

  
Minutes of previous meeting 
 
Consideration of the Forward Plan 
 
Consideration of Executive Committee key 
decisions 
 
Call-ins (if any) 
 
Pre-scrutiny (if any) 
 
Consideration of Overview and Scrutiny 
Actions List 
 
Referrals from Council or Executive 
Committee, etc. (if any) 
 
Task Groups / Short, Sharp Review Groups 
- feedback 
 
Committee Work Programme 

 
Chief Executive 
 
Chief Executive 
 
Chief Executive 
 
 
Chief Executive 
 
Chief Executive 
 
Chief Executive 
 
 
Chief Executive 
 
 
Chief Executive 
 
 
Chief Executive 
 

  
REGULAR ITEMS 
 
Quarterly Performance Report 
 
Quarterly Budget Monitoring Report 
 
Annual Update on the Implementation of 
the Civil Parking Enforcement Scheme 
 
 

 
 
 
Chief Executive 
 
Chief Executive 
 
Relevant Lead 
Heads of Service 
 
 

Agenda Item 14Page 81



   
 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

  

 

11th December 2012 
 

Y:\Committee Services\Overview and Scrutiny Committee\2012\121211\O&S Work Programme – 121211 

 

  
REGULAR ITEMS 
 
Update on fly tipping and progress with the 
Worth It campaign 
 
Update on the work of the Crime and 
Disorder Scrutiny Panel. 
 
Updates on the work of the Worcestershire 
Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
 
 
Bi-Annual Recommendation Tracker Reports 
– Scrutiny Committee  
 
Bi-Annual Monitoring Report – Redditch 
Sustainable Community Strategy 
 

 
 
 
Relevant Lead 
Head(s) of Service 
 
Chair of the Crime and 
Disorder Scrutiny Panel 
 
Redditch Borough Council 
representative on the Health 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 
 
Relevant Lead 
Head(s) of Service 
 
Relevant Lead 
Head(s) of Service 
 
 

 
OTHER ITEMS 
- DATE FIXED 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
11th Dec  
2012 

 
Concessionary Rents – Pre-Decision 
Scrutiny and Short-Sharp Review Outcomes 

 
Relevant Lead 
Heads of Service 
 

 
11th Dec  
2012 

 
Overview and Scrutiny Six Month Review 
Report 

 
Councillor Brunner 
 

 
11th Dec  
2012 

 
Portfolio Holder Annual Report – Written 
Report – Leisure and Tourism 

 
Relevant Lead 
Heads of Service 
 

 
11th Dec  
2012 

 
Quarterly Budget Report – Quarter Two – 
July – September 2012 

 
Relevant Lead 
Head of Service 
 

Page 82



   
 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

  

 

11th December 2012 
 

Y:\Committee Services\Overview and Scrutiny Committee\2012\121211\O&S Work Programme – 121211 

 

 
8th Jan 
2013 

 
Fees and Charges 2013/14 – Pre-Scrutiny 

 
Relevant Lead 
Heads of Service 
 

 
8th Jan 
2013 

 
Monitoring Update Report – Promoting 
Redditch Task and Finish Group 

 
Relevant Lead 
Heads of Service 
 

 
8th Jan 
2013 

 
Overview and Scrutiny Recommendation 
Tracker – Mid-Year Report 

 
Relevant Lead 
Heads of Service 
 

 
8th Jan 
2013 

 
Portfolio Holder Annual Report – Leisure and 
Tourism 

 
Councillor Stephens 

 
8th Jan 
2013 

 
Portfolio Holder Annual Report – Written 
Report – Housing 

 
Relevant Lead 
Heads of Service 
 

 
5th Feb 
2013 

 
Market Scrutiny Task Group – Final Report 

 
Councillor Brazier 

 
5th Feb 
2013 

 
Access for Disabled People Task Group – 
Monitoring Update Report 

 
Relevant Lead 
Heads of Service 
 

 
5th Feb  
2013 

 
Disabled Access Group – Update Report on 
Support 

 
Relevant Lead 
Heads of Service 
 

 
5th Feb  
2013 

 
Portfolio Holder Annual Report – Housing 

 
Councillor Shurmer 

 
5th Feb  
2013 

 
Portfolio Holder Annual Report – Written 
Report – Community Leadership and 
Partnership 

 
Relevant Lead 
Heads of Service 
 

Page 83



   
 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

  

 

11th December 2012 
 

Y:\Committee Services\Overview and Scrutiny Committee\2012\121211\O&S Work Programme – 121211 

 

 
5th March 
2013 

 
Arts and Culture Centre Task Group - Final 
Report 

 
Councillor Hopkins 

 
5th March 
2013 

 
Portfolio Holder Annual Report –  Community 
Leadership and Partnership 

 
Councillor Hartnett 

 
5th March 
2013 

 
Draft Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 

 
Councillor Brunner 

 
21st March 
2013 

 
West Midlands Regional Scrutiny Network 

 

 
2nd April  
2013 

 
Youth Services Provision Task Group – 
Monitoring Update Report 

 
Relevant Lead 
Head of Service 
 

 
May 2013 

 
Promoting Sporting Participation – 
Monitoring Update Report 

 
Relevant Lead 
Head of Service 
 

 
July 2013 

 
Anti-Social Behaviour Task and Finish Group 
- Monitoring Update Report 

 
Relevant Lead 
Head of Service 
 

 
OTHER ITEMS 
– DATE NOT 
FIXED 

  

  
Disabled Parking in the Former Covered 
Market Area – Outcomes of the Review 

 
Relevant Lead 
Heads of Service 
 

  
Equalities and Diversity – Submission of a 
Scoping Document 

 
Councillor Fry 

Page 84



   
 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

  

 

11th December 2012 
 

Y:\Committee Services\Overview and Scrutiny Committee\2012\121211\O&S Work Programme – 121211 

 

 

  
Housing Allocations Policy Review – Pre-
Scrutiny 

 
Relevant Lead 
Head of Service 
 

  
Landscaping Works in Private Car Parks –
Outcomes of the Review 

 
Relevant Lead 
Heads of Service 
 

  
RNIB React system – Outcomes of the 
Review 

 
Relevant Lead 
Heads of Service 
 

  
Regeneration in the Town -  Submission of a 
Scoping Document 

 
Councillor Bush 

  
Shopmobility Ramp Cover – Outcomes of 
the Review 

 
Relevant Lead 
Head of Service 
 

  
Tree Maintenance – Submission of a 
Scoping Document 

 
Councillor Fisher 

Page 85



Page 86


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes Appendix 1

	4 Quarterly Budget Monitoring Report - Quarter 2 - July - September 2012
	5 Concessionary Rents - Pre-Scrutiny Short, Sharp Review
	6 Overview and Scrutiny - Six Month Review of the Committee Function
	7 Portfolio Holder Annual Report - Written Report - Leisure and Tourism
	8 Actions List
	9 Executive Committee Minutes and Scrutiny of the Executive Work Programme
	December 2012 to March 2013

	14 Work Programme

